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Financial Highlights
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Year ended 31 March 2010

2010 2009 Change
EEWE(BETT) RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS (HK$'000)
W zs Revenue 1,806,334 1,603,107 13%
BR 5% B ) Profit before tax 208,696 103,852 101%
IN/NEIEE S SF N Profit attributable to equity holders
i fayenyl of the Company 153,500 85,786 79%
BELHE Total assets 3,493,038 2,385,343 21%
e g Shareholders’ funds 2,464,066 2,338,471 5%
BT Issued share capital 62,919 62,883 0%
MENE EFE Net current assets 1,456,957 1,211,258 20%
BREE PER SHARE DATA
ERREARZRF GEN) Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 24.4 13.6 79%
SRR ERE CEI) Cash dividends per share (HK cents) 12.0 7.0 71%
EREEFEET) Net assets per share (HK$) 3.9 3.7 5%
FEHKLEE KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
PR R HRE (%) Return on average shareholders’ funds (%) 6.4 3.6 78%
FHEELBERBRE (%) Return on average total assets (%) 4.8 29 66%
JL Jd&= > ey
BB & #
Share Price Information
FrER&E LA T3k i
All share prices are expressed in Hong Kong dollars
2010 2009 2008
B& RiK 5] &I 54 53 i
Highest Lowest Highest Lowest Highest Lowest
—E=H Jan - Mar 2.99 2.18 1.78 1.22 4.79 3.50
EYAYS Apr - Jun 3.35 2.43 2.49 1.32 3.85 3.20
+ZENA Jul - Sep TEFAN/A TEAN/A 2.80 1.90 3.34 1.90
+&+=A4 Oct - Dec TEFAN/A FEFAN/A 2.50 2.02 2.00 0.97
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Business Review

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group registered total turnover
of HK$1,806 million (2009: HK$1,603 million), increase of 13% over
last year. Profit attributable to equity holders grew by 79% to HK$154
million (2009: HK$86 million).

During the second half of this financial year, the China domestic
economy resumed high speed growth, with GDP growing by 9.1% (as
revised) to USD&.789 ftrillion, strongly leading the worldwide economy
recovery.

The Chen Hsong Group benefited from a series of economic stimulus
measures undertaken by the Chinese Government early this financial
year, which caused the domestic economy to revert to steady growth
within a few months from the depths of the financial crisis. These
measures, including relaxed monetary policies and support programs
for specific industries (e.g. electric appliances to rural, tax breaks for
automotive etc.), attained their target in fueling economic activity, while
in the meantime also created rapid growth in demand for large and
ultra-large-tonnage injection moulding machines. Many domestic-
focused enterprises were direct beneficiaries of the government-led
investment programs, and they responded by taking advantage of the
growth opportunities to invest heavily into new manufacturing capacity.

The Group focused on adding new production equipment and restarting
the raw materials supply chain in order to capture the demand for large
and ultra-large-tonnage injection moulding machines. The domestic
automotive and electric appliance markets in China continued to be
strong growth drivers, and the robustness in domestic consumption
had compensated for continued weakness in the export sector. For
the Group, its customer profile had also evolved to one with domestic-
focused customers in the lead over the traditional core group of export-
oriented customers.
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Chairman’s Statement

Future Prospects

The World Bank forecasts China’s GDP growth in 2010 to be around
9.5%, with domestic consumption growing at a steady but rapid rate
and China continuing to be the only bright spot among world economies.
On the other hand, however, inevitable increases in material prices and
labour costs will start to put pressure on operating cost of enterprises
in China.

Growth expectations for the U.S. economy have also been raised, but
significant dangers to the economy still loom in overwhelming debt
burden and Federal budget deficit. In Europe, the sovereign debt crises
have shaken confidence in the Eurozone economies; challenges are
still abound and it will be unlikely for strong recovery in Europe to come
within the near future.

The Group continues to focus on R&D as its core competitive
strategy and will within the next two years further enhance its existing
technologies in energy-saving and two-platen large-tonnage injection
moulding machines.

The Chen Hsong Group will continue to stick to its core operating
believes and do its utmost to take advantage of opportunities emerging
from an economic recovery.

Gratitude

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to give my heartfelt
thanks to all shareholders of Chen Hsong Group, customers, suppliers,
business partners, banks and loyal employees for their long term
support over the years.

Chen CHIANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 July 2010
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
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Business Performance

During the financial year of 2010, the Group registered total turnover
of HK$1,806 million (2009: HK$1,603 million), increase of 13% over
last year. Profit attributable to equity holders grew by 79% to HK$154
million (2009: HK$86 million). Basic earnings per share is HK24.4
cents (2009: HK13.6 cents).

Market conditions this year developed in extremes: on the one hand,
China remained the only bright spot among world economies and the
primary source of strength for world economic recovery after the global
financial crisis; on the other hand, the European and U.S. economies
barely avoided a depression but were still plagued by the aftermaths
of the financial crisis, with major economic indicators (overall credit,
consumption, unemployment rate, budget deficit, etc.) still showing
extreme weakness, compounded by the “PIIGS” countries’ sovereign
debt fiasco.

3 ANNUAL REPORT 2010

HRFR S BT AR KA ER AL EB K
SUPERMASTER Energy Saving Two-Platen Advanced Machine
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EHEEBZRERDH
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Amid such an extremely fragile world economic environment, China,
being the primary driver to pull it out of recession, depended on a
massive RMBA4 trillion economic stimulus package issued by the Central
Government during the first half of the financial year, which included
a series of measures to promote domestic industry output (e.g. electric
appliances and automotive for rural, tax breaks for automotive, massive
infrastructure investments, etc.) as well as a huge relaxation of bank
credit. These measures kept China domestic consumption active,
propelled 2009 GDP growth to 9.1% (as revised), and are almost certain
to make China the second largest economic entity in the world by 2010.

The Chinese stimulus measures also raised the risks of economic
bubbles due to over-expansion of bank credit — 2009 total bank lending
almost touched RMB1O ftrillion, more than double that of 2008 — and
had already caused asset bubbles (e.g. real estate) which necessitated
the Central Government’s clamping down. Nevertheless, these risks
had not diminished China’s current position as the centre of worldwide
economic activities.

The general weaknesses of European and U.S. economies formed a
striking contrast with China’s high growth, causing the China market itself
to also develop in extremes: on the one hand, export-oriented industries
continued to be depressed due to reduced demand from European
and U.S. markets; on the other hand, industries catering to domestic
consumption, especially those with policy support such as automotive
and electric appliances, continued to enjoy rapid growth in demand —and
in our industry this translated into significant demand growth primarily in
large and ultra-large-tonnage injection moulding machines.

3R ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
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During the second half of this financial year, the Group aggressively
expanded its capacity, especially for large-tonnage injection moulding
machines, restarted supply chains and trained new workers, with the
goal to raise overall production capacity back to the level before the
global financial crisis (in response to the financial crisis, the Group
had restructured its production capacity last year) within as short a
timeframe as possible. However, before production capacity could be
totally restored, the Group could only capture a small amount of the
market demand for large and ultra-large-tonnage machines. If this
market continues its robustness in the near future, the Group expects
that its renewed capacity should enable it to progressively increase
market share.

Market Analysis

Breakdown of turnover, based on the location of customers, for the year
ended 31 March 2010 is as follows:

2010 2009
(B EET) (B EEx) BE
EFihig Customer Location (HK$ million)  (HK$ million)  Change
A 3 A o % S Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,359 981 +39%
& Taiwan 109 189 -42%
H A GINEZK Other overseas countries 338 433 22%
1,806 1603 +13%

q:‘lﬁimiﬁﬁf‘ﬁif%%m LA BT 5 Bh
TEARTEEREE  PEAEARE

xwﬁﬁ@§°ﬂﬂMm$$%%
BB —ETNFLEFAEER
59% @ KR EIREARHTEMS » 515
¥ KR KB R SR T SFORUE ©
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Growth in the China market continued to be dominated by government-
encouraged industries, especially automotive and electric appliances,
with automotive being the hottest, growing at the substantial rate of
59% in 2009 over last year to become the largest automotive market in
the world, causing significant increases in demand for large and ultra-
large-tonnage injection moulding machines.
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EHEEBZRERTH
Management's Discussion and Analysis

In the electric appliances industry, the Central Government’s “rural”
programs also began to show expected results, with sales in 2009
growing more than 10% over last year, primarily focused in “white
goods” such as air-conditioners (11.6% growth), refrigerators (15.3%
growth) and washing machines (10.8% growth). Certain white goods
manufacturers even reported sales growth exceeding 50%, which
also fueled growth in demand for medium and large-tonnage injection
moulding machines.

On the other hand, exports painted a different picture: total China
exports in 2009 dropped by 16% on a year-on-year basis to a level even
lower than 2007. In particular, exports to the U.S. declined by 12.3%
with plastics goods exports declining by 10.1%, toys declining by 25%
and consumer electronics and appliances declining by 9.2%. Exports to
the Europe also dropped by 13% with toys declining by 6%. Taking the
toy industry as an example to illustrate the remarkable contrast between
exports and domestic consumption — total China toy exports in 2009
declined by 22.5% compared with last year (with Guangdong province
declining by 25%), but the domestic toy industry in China grew by
10-15%.

In a nutshell, the Group’s sales to the China domestic market had
grown substantially, but core export-oriented customers continued to
be depressed. Consequently, the Group’s total sales turnover in China
grew by 39% to HK$1,359 million (2009: HK$981 million).

HRER S EEETAL L B
SUPERMASTER Energy Saving All Electric Machine
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

AETISENE A CEFEMZ I HZKA
B REEERBUEF THRA2%E
BELOMEBIT(ZEZNF - BH¥189E
7)) BRIER AR B FE R AR EE
8 WBBRAKE - MERERETISTH
BB B R EHERRE N AMER
RNER - MES BER AR HIR A B
RXEIFE - BRZERSDEREUHE
REBEEERSE EEBHITEAR
BHEEFKNERE  EHRTENRER
FesRl - BRERE T AMBFENBERT
BRE  LEF T RR2%E8%3.38(E 7T
(ZZTNEF - BB433ET) -

BRI BEECREWEERER T
DERPERNANMBFERBIRETT
R BONEREXRTOEZREIEK
¥ BEAIRRGRE - EEMNEEE
Ei @ 0 R B E B ABEATER -
HBAKENBEREGEETSHE =
ZEUAR HEEE A IRE o

iR

3} ANNUAL REPORT 2010

The Taiwan domestic market was dominated by crisis-stricken export-
oriented enterprises, with total sales turnover declining by 42% to
HK$109 million (2009: HK$189 million). Nevertheless prospects are
turning in the positive direction with orders strengthening around the
end of this financial year. Internationally, many overseas markets were
not immediately affected by the financial crisis at the onset due to
longer delivery lead times and payment by letters of credit. However,
many developing countries experienced severe credit tightening and
depreciating currencies against the US$ and RMB during this period,
causing a sharp reduction in the number of new orders, which in turn
caused the sales performance for this financial year to drop 22% over
last year to HK$338 million (2009: HK$433 million).

Despite this, many developing countries had begun to recover during this
financial year from the shockwaves of the financial crisis with currency
exchanges rates firming up to more reasonable levels and strengthening
purchasing power. On the other hand, short-term economic prospects
in Europe and the U.S. continued to be unpredictable and should
continue to depress the Group’s international business, depending on
when their economies start to recover and the speed of such recovery.

S BPRIEEET AT 2B
EASYMASTER Energy Saving Servo Drive Machine
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EHEEBZRERDH
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

New Technologies and New Products Development

The Group has always focused its R&D on high energy-saving, high speed
and high efficiency technologies. A number of products introduced this
year were also quite unique — including a “New Age” computer control
system and the “MJ20-H" servo-driven high-precision mini-injection
moulding machine.

Chen Hsong's New Age intelligent computer control system is based
on leading-edge industrial control technologies, an advanced EtherCAT
industrial I/0 bus, and the highly intelligent TwinCAT automation control
system to form a highly flexible, open control solution for diverse
application. System programming is IEC61131-3 compliant which
ensures high safety standards, with a Windows-based user interface that
enables flexible extensions. This control system has been successfully
applied in high-end, high precision, ultra-high-speed applications for all-
electric, hydraulic-clamping, toggle-clamping and two-platen injection
moulding machines.

B st E BB
MINIJET Intelligent Energy Saving Machine
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Chen Hsong’s “MJ20-H” servo-driven high-precision mini-injection
moulding machine combines the Group’s expertise in mini-injection
moulding, German company Bosch Rexroth’s top-of-the-line servo
control system, an all-hydraulic centre-applied clamping design,
balanced injection cylinders, high-strength linear guide rails, and the
New Age intelligent control system to form a coherent package that
is highly efficient, energy-saving, low-inertia, high-response and low-
noise. It is particularly suitable in forming high precision and mini-
scale products. Its all-new look is aesthetically pleasing as well as fully
compliant to the GB and CE international safety standards.

Production Capacity and Cost Control

When the global financial crisis hit in late 2008, the Group immediately
experienced a drastic reduction in order intake and, amid extremely
uncertain prospects, immediately put in place a number of emergency
measures for cash preservation through strong and effective cash flow
management in order to weather the shocks from the financial crisis.

T BAIRIREE B E AL T B 1
JETMASTER Energy Saving Ai Servo Drive Machine
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EHEEBZRERDH
Management's Discussion and Analysis

During the period from late 2008 to early 2009, the Group had
restructured its entire production capacity including supply chain.
Transitioning on to May and June of 2009, with the China domestic
economy in an obvious and strong rebound, the Group immediately
reviewed the necessity to continue these emergency measures. As most
economists failed to predict the rapidity of China market recovery, many
domestic industries experienced a simultaneous explosion in demand,
causing significant bottlenecks in the Group’s supply chain during the
second half of this financial year (due to the fact that most suppliers
had also reduced capacity during the onset of the financial crisis). In
response to this, the Group had immediately redoubled its efforts to
develop new supply sources (especially for materials of large-tonnage
injection moulding machines) in order to mitigate the risks of an overly-
concentrated supply chain in future.

On the cost control side, the Group’s gross margin during the second
half of this financial year benefited from an extremely lean cost structure
— result of last year’'s emergency measures — as well as substantial
reductions in raw material prices, returning to the general level before
the financial crisis.

SPS33007 4% B ek 48 = A 42 ol 2%
SPS3300 EuroController
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review

Liquidity and Financial Conditions

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had net current assets of HK$1,457
million (2009: HK$1,211 million), which represented a 20% increase
over last year. Included in the net current assets were the cash and
bank balances of HK$864 million (2009: HK$446 million), an increase
of HK$418 million over last year, and the bank loans of HK$42 million
(2009: HK$38 million), an increase of HK$4 million. The bank loans
were short term with floating interest rates for payments to suppliers in
Japanese yen.

It is the policy of the Group to adopt a consistently prudent financial
management strategy, sufficient liquidity is maintained with appropriate
levels of borrowings to meet the funding requirements of the Group’s
investments and operations.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Treasury and Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group adopts a prudent and centralized approach in managing
its funding. Funds, primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars, U.S.
dollars and Renminbi, are normally placed with banks in short or
medium term deposits for the working capital of the Group.

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had total foreign currency borrowings
equivalent to HK$42 million (2009: HK$38 million). The Group, from
time to time, assesses the risk exposure on certain volatile foreign
currencies and has it covered in appropriate manners to minimize the
risk.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2010, the Group, excluding its associates, had
approximately 2,800 (2009: 2,500) full-time employees. The Group
offers good remuneration and welfare packages to its employees and
maintains market-competitive pay levels. Employees are rewarded
based on individual as well as the results performance of the Group.
Share options of the Company are granted to selected employees of the
Group for rewarding and retaining talents.

The Group conducted regular programmes, including comprehensive
educational and professional training, and social activities counselling,
to its employees to enhance staff quality, standards of professional
knowledge and teamwork spirit.

FRFEC2ARREIRE T YA
JETMASTER Energy Saving C2 Large Machine
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Future Prospects

Visibility continues to be low for the world economy during the next
financial year (i.e. 2010/2011), with equal prospects for negative as
well as positive developments. On the positive side, China will continue
to grow in a steady but relatively rapid pace, targeting a healthy GDP
growth of over 8%. On the negative side, a multitude of economic
indicators all point to a general lack of resiliency in the U.S. economic
recovery; the European Union continues to be plagued by sovereign
debt crises and substantial pressure on the Euro with little prospects of
short-term improvements.

The Group will continue to focus its energies on China market as well as
seek growth in certain developing countries. It will also strive to increase
general production capacity, especially for large and ultra-large-tonnage
injection moulding machines, in order to enable the Group to more
rapidly capture market share for these products.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Executive Directors

Chen CHIANG GBM, OBE, DEng, DSc, DSSc, DBA, FHKIE,

aged 86

Chairman

Dr. Chiang was appointed a Director of the Company in 1991. He is
the Chairman of the Group and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Dr. Chiang founded the Group
and The Chiang Chen Industrial Charity Foundation. He was appointed
Hong Kong Affairs Advisor and a member of the Advisory Committee of
College of Management, National Chung Cheng University. Dr. Chiang is
also the Economy Advisor of Shandong Provincial People’s Government
andthe Honorary President of The Research Centre for Market—Economy
of Peking University. In addition, Dr. Chiang is the Honorary Chairman
of the Federation of Hong Kong Machinery and Metal Industries and the
Hong Kong Electrical Appliances Manufacturers Association. Dr. Chiang
founded Chiang Chen Industrial Institute situated at his hometown of
Heze City of Shandong Province in 1999. He is the father of Ms. Lai
Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG.

Lai Yuen CHIANG BA, aged 44

Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Chiang joined the Group in 1988 and was appointed a Director of the
Company in 2000. She is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and is responsible for the management and business development of
the Group. Ms. Chiang holds directorships in various subsidiaries of
the Company and is a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. She holds a bachelor degree
of Arts from Wellesley College, U.S.A. and has extensive experience
in production management, sales and marketing. Ms. Chiang is a
standing committee member of the Shenzhen Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Vice-Chairman of the
Shenzhen Federation of Industrial Economics and Vice-President of
China Shenzhen Machinery Association. She is also the Vice-President
of The Toys Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, a General
Committee Member of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong
Kong, a member of the Standing Committee on Disciplined Services
Salaries and Conditions of Service of The Government of the Hong Kong
SAR, a member of the Standing Committee on Directorate Salaries and
Conditions of Service of The Government of the Hong Kong SAR, a
member of the Council of both The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and The Open University of Hong Kong. Ms. Chiang
was awarded the “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” by the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2004. She is Dr. Chen CHIANG’s
daughter and the sister of Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG.
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Chi Kin CHIANG BSc, aged 43

Mr. Chiang joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2003. He was also appointed President — Group
Manufacturing with effect from 1 May 2009 responsible for the
manufacturing function of the Group. Mr. Chiang holds a bachelor
degree of Applied Science in Industrial Design from Rochester Institute
of Technology, New York. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chiang had
six years' experience in industrial design, working for a multinational
company in the U.S.A.. Mr. Chiang is a member of the Guangdong
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Vice Chairman of China Plastics Machinery Industry Association and
Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors. He is Dr. Chen CHIANG's
son and the brother of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG.

Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG VMBA, BSc, aged 43

Mr. Chung joined the Group in 2001 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2003. He also holds the position of Group Chief
Officer — Strategy, Sales and Marketing. Mr. Chung holds a bachelor
degree of Science in Electrical Engineering & Computer Science from
the University of California, Berkeley. He also holds an MBA degree
in Finance from Columbia University, New York City, U.S.A.. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chung had more than 14 years’ experience in
sales and marketing, management consultancy, financial analysis and
information technology.

Sam Hon Wah NG BSc Econ, MBA, MAF, DBA, ACA, FCPA,
aged 50

Mr. Ng joined the Group in 2002 and was appointed a Director of the
Company in 2003. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng was engaged
in financial management with several multinational companies. He
has extensive cross-border financial management,

acquisitions, and corporate development experience. Mr.

mergers and
Ng is
responsible for managing special projects and corporate governance
of the Group. He holds an honour degree in Economics at the London
School of Economics (University of London), a master degree of Applied
Finance at the Macquarie University (Australia), an MBA degree from
The City University Business School (England) and a Doctor of Business
Administration degree from the University of Newcastle (Australia). Mr.
Ng is a Chartered Accountant, an associate member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, and a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Johnson Chin Kwang TAN BA, BSSc, aged 49

Mr. Tan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2001. He is
currently a Director of IB Partners Pte Limited. Mr. Tan has over
20 years experience in investment banking based out of New York,
Hong Kong and Singapore. He had held various roles with leading
financial institutions including JP Morgan, UBS Warburg, Macquarie
and BNP Paribas Capital (Singapore) Limited where he was the Chief
Executive Officer and regional head for their South East Asia corporate
finance business. He has advised major corporations and government
authorities across the region. During the period from 9 September 2005
to 7 November 2006, Mr. Tan was an independent director of Pacific
Internet Limited, a company listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market. Mr.
Tan graduated from the National University of Singapore and was a
recipient of the Lim Tay Boh gold medal and NUS Economics Society
Book Prize.

Anish LALVANI BSc, MBA, FHKIoD,

aged 44

Mr. Lalvani was appointed a Director of the Company in 2002. He is
Chairman of Euro Suisse International Limited which has business
interests in Hong Kong, Europe, the Former Soviet Union, Africa and
the Middle East. He has lived and worked in the U.K., U.S.A., India and
Hong Kong and holds an MBA degree from the University of San Diego.
Mr. Lalvani has extensive marketing experience in the emerging markets
and an in-depth knowledge of electrical appliances manufacturers in
China — many of whom have in house moulding facilities. He is the
former Chairman for both the North Asia Region and the Hong Kong
Chapter of the Young Presidents’ Organization. Mr. Lalvani is a member
of Hong Kong Trade Development Council’s Electronics/Electrical
Appliances Industry Advisory Committee, a committee member of
the Asian Cultural Council, a Director of Harvard Business School
Association of Hong Kong Limited and a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute
of Directors.
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Bernard Charnwut CHAN GBS, JP, aged 45

Mr. Chan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2004. He is a
graduate of Pomona College in California, U.S.A.. He has been elected a
Deputy to the Chinese National People’s Congress since January 2008.
He is a former member of both the Executive Council and the Legislative
Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Chan is
the Chairman of each of the Council for Sustainable Development, the
Antiquities Advisory Board, the Advisory Committee on Revitalisation of
Historic Buildings, the Council of Lingnan University and Hong Kong-
Thailand Business Council. In addition, he serves as the Chairperson
of The Hong Kong Council of Social Service and the Vice Chairman
of the Oxfam Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is currently an Executive Director
and the President of both Asia Financial Holdings Ltd. (listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)) and
Asia Insurance Company Limited and an advisor of Bangkok Bank
Public Company Limited, Hong Kong Branch. He is a Non-executive
Director of City e-Solutions Limited and New Heritage Holdings Ltd.,
an Independent Non-executive Director of each of China Resources
Enterprise, Limited, Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited and Yau
Lee Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan since April 2007 has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of Wing Lung Bank Limited, which was delisted from the Stock
Exchange on 16 January 2009.

Michael Tze Hau LEE BA, MBA, aged 49

Mr. Lee was appointed a Director of the Company in 2008. He is the
Managing Director of MAP Capital Limited, an investment management
company. Mr. Lee started his career in the investment industry in 1987
and has since held senior management positions in multinational
investment companies including Indosuez Asia Investment Services
Limited and Lloyd George Management. He also co-founded Asia
Strategic Investment Management Limited in 1995. He was educated
in the United States of America and holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree
from Bowdoin College and a Master of Business Administration Degree
from Boston University. Mr. Lee was a member of each of the Main
Board and Growth Enterprise Market Listing Committee of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is a Non-executive Director of
Hysan Development Limited, an Independent Non-executive Director
of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and Trinity Limited, all
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange; and a Steward of the Hong
Kong Jockey Club. Mr. Lee was an Independent Non-executive Director
of Tai Ping Carpets International Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange)
between August 1998 and June 2010.
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company recognizes the
importance of good corporate governance practices in safeguarding the
interests of the shareholders and enhancing the performance of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Board is committed
to maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate governance
practices.

Except as disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with
the code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) during the financial year
ended 31 March 2010.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Company, after having made
specific enquiries of all directors, confirms that all directors have
complied with the required standard as set out in the Code and the
Model Code throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2010.
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Board of Directors

At the date of this report, the Board consists of five executive directors
and four independent non-executive directors:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Chen CHIANG, GBM (Chairman)

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG

Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Note :
Dr. Chen CHIANG (Chairman) is the father of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief
Executive Officer) and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (Executive Director).

Under the second limb of Code Provision A.4.2, every director should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The directors of the Company (except the Chairman of the Company)
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
as the Chen Hsong Holdings Limited Company Act, 1991 of Bermuda
provides that the chairman and managing director of the Company are
not required to retire by rotation.

The primary responsibilities of the Board are to establish the Group’s
vision, strategic direction, general policies and strategic business
plans; to monitor and control the operating and financial performance
of the Group; to implement the best corporate governance practices
throughout the Group; and to set appropriate policies to assess and
manage risks in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Group.
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The Board meets regularly throughout the year to review the overall
strategies and the operating and financial performance of the Group.
The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the agenda for
Board meetings in consultation with all directors. Notice of at least 14
days is given to all directors for all regular Board meetings, and directors
can include matters for discussion in the agenda. The agenda and
accompanying Board papers for regular Board meetings are sent out
in full package to all directors at least 3 days before the date of a Board
meeting. Draft minutes of all regular Board meetings are circulated to all
directors for comments prior to their confirmation. Confirmed minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary. All directors have
access to Board papers and related materials and may, in appropriate
circumstances, seek independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense.

The Board has delegated the daily operations of the Company to
Management comprising all executive directors, management staff, and
operating heads of different business units. The main responsibilities
of Management are to implement the strategies and business plans
set by the Board and to manage the Group’s business operations in
accordance with the policies and directives of the Board.

The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage on
directors’ and officers’ liabilities arising from the Group’s business. The
Management reviews the extent of insurance coverage on an annual
basis.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Each independent non-executive director of the Company has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of not more
than three years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company
is subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considered all such directors are
independent.
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Meetings and Attendance

During this financial year, four regular Board meetings were held at
approximately quarterly intervals, and the attendance record of each
director is as follows:

HERE GERE
EEnA Number of meetings HER
Name of director attended / held Attendance rate
BE 4/4 100%
Chen CHIANG
gy 4/4 100%
Lai Yuen CHIANG
R 4/4 100%
Chi Kin CHIANG
R 4/4 100%
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
RRE 4/4 100%
Sam Hon Wah NG
PR St 4/4 100%
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Anish LALVANI 4/4 100%
PRE R 4/4 100%
Bernard Charnwut CHAN
MFE 4/4 100%
Michael Tze Hau LEE

ERRITHBAH
BREBLRERERIR BEELLAR
AREITREH - EFEBITRARZA
BEFRRE  URRESERAQF
2B FIEMRBE -

ITRBEIAEECBBEXERISE
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Board is Dr. Chen CHIANG, and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company is Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG. The roles
of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are defined clearly
to ensure their independence, accountability and responsibility with
respect to the management of the Company.

The Chairman focuses on overall corporate development and high-level
strategic directions of the Group, provides leadership to the Board, and
oversees the efficient functioning of the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for managing the Group’s
business operations, and advising the Board of business strategies and
their implementations.
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Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee was established on 9 May 2005. At
the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Bernard Charnwut
CHAN, Mr. Anish LALVANI and Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE, and the Chief
Executive Officer, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG. Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
is the Committee Chairman. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the Company’s website.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for
the remuneration of directors and senior management. It also reviews
and determines the remuneration packages of executive directors
and senior management of the Group. The Remuneration Committee
considers factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the executive directors and senior
management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during this financial
year. The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERS BFXE
BEpS Number of meeting HE=R
Name of director attended / held Attendance rate
PRED B 1/1 100%
Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Anish LALVANI 1/1 100%
BB 11 100%
Lai Yuen CHIANG
FFE 1/1 100%
Michael Tze Hau LEE

HE_ZT-ZTFE=-A=+—HILFE "
FHEZEEB e TESITES(ANAS
RERBAB) ZERNKRR R EAERERIT
BB ERE  RIVBBRAITES
ZHM - 8EZTEEKEREAR AL

EeHTRE -

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Remuneration Committee
had reviewed and approved matters relating to the remuneration
packages of the executive directors (also being the senior management
of the Company), after assessing the individual performance and in
consultation with the proposals of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer. No member took part in voting about his/her own remuneration
at the meeting.
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Nomination of Directors

The Company does not have a Nomination Committee. The directors
participate in the assessment and selection of individuals nominated
for directorships. Individuals, suitably qualified and who can contribute
to the performance of the Company are identified and nominated to
the Board. The selection criteria for Board membership includes
professional expertise, high standards of relevant skills, high levels of
integrity and business ethics, and demonstrable competence as
required by a director of a listed company. A candidate to be appointed
as an independent non-executive director must also satisfy the
independence criteria set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As there
was no appointment of new director during the financial year, no board
meeting was convened for that purpose.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 28 November 1998. At the
date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Anish LALVANI, Mr. Johnson Chin
Kwang TAN, Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN and Mr. Michael Tze Hau
LEE. Mr. Anish LALVANI is the Committee Chairman.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee follow the guidelines
set out by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and have been updated to comply with the CG Code. The updated
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the Company’s
website.
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RAEAFHRFEEA %V?E HETH The Audit Committee held two meetings (totalling four sessions)
REH(EUE)  BREZLZEENE during this financial year. The attendance record of each member is
Zﬂjfuﬂﬁ“ﬁﬁuﬁﬂ—l— as follows:
“EENAFEHA+HWA —EZAF+—AZ+HAH
14 July 2009 25 November 2009
EFEER FEIEER
HEEFREE HEREE
Final results Interim results HER
BEEHE and NP2 and AP F Attendance
Name of director related matters| Internal audit| related matters| Internal audit rate
Anish LALVANI (4 v (4 (4 100%
PR St v (4 (4 v 100%
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
E% B /u\ X V “ ‘/ 75%
Bernard Charnwut CHAN
FITE v v v v 100%
Michael Tze Hau LEE

P

%

—E-FF= HE—T-—EIJJ:EE'%
ZEeC#ET

Rl AREEF TN BHRER A

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Audit Committee had:

e reviewed the Group’s annual and interim financial statements with

respect to their true and fairness, and discussed with the external

RENE R P - 3 BRSNS A B 5

uFHJ’

BOGEER 2 EH - URTEHA
EEPERR Y

B INEZBAREEBZ WG RE
IBE 2 BIfE

SRR ISR BRAM 1R H e S A
BZER

auditors;

e reviewed the changes in accounting standards and their impacts
on the Group’s financial statements;

e reviewed the external auditors’ Letter to Management and responses
of the Management;

e made recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditors
and reviewed their audit fees;
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reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems;

e reviewed the internal audit findings and recommendations of the
Internal Audit Department and the responses of Management;

e reviewed the continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group;

e reviewed, in particular, the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget;
and

e reviewed the Group’s compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements.

Auditors’ Remuneration

Auditors’ remuneration for the year amounted to a total of HK$1,946,000
for the year, of which HK$1,769,000 was incurred for audit service and
HK$177,000 for non-audit services.

Accountability and Audit

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2010 have been audited by the external auditors,
Ernst & Young, and reviewed by the Audit Committee. The directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements
of the Group which were prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

A statement by the external auditors about their reporting responsibilities
is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 47 to 48
of this annual report.
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Internal Controls

The Company has in place an internal control system comprising a well-
designed organizational structure that facilitates segregation of duties,
comprehensive operational and financial controls, and effective risk
management. Management, which comprises senior staff and operating
heads of different business units, is primarily responsible for the design,
implementation, and improvement of internal controls. The Board
oversees internal governance and Management’s activities. Through the
Audit Committee and the Group’s Internal Audit Department, the Board
has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the internal
control system for the year ended 31 March 2010 which also included
the consideration on the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget.

The Audit Committee has been established by the Board to conduct
regular checking on internal governance and compliance, and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system. The Audit
Committee comprises independent non-executive directors who are
experienced in corporate management. The Audit Committee appoints
and delegates to the Group’s Internal Audit Department the major role
in monitoring the Group’s compliance with policies and standards
and reviewing the effectiveness of internal controls through frequent
auditing of the business of different units across the Group. The Group’s
Internal Audit Department plans its internal audit activities annually and
submits to the Audit Committee for review and approval. Audit findings
are reported to the Audit Committee and any proposed corrective
actions are properly followed up. The Audit Committee also meets
with the Company’s external auditors regularly. Matters raised in the
Letter to Management from external auditors are reviewed by the Audit
Committee.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all
shareholders and is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information through published interim and annual reports,
public announcements and other public circulars. The Company
usually conducts briefing immediately following the announcement of
interim and final results. Face-to-face meetings and conference calls
with institutional investors and investment analysts are conducted on a
regular basis to make sure that shareholders and potential investors can
obtain a good understanding of the Company’s business. To ensure all
investors and potential investors receive equal access to information at
the same time, information considered to be of a price sensitive nature
is released by formal public announcements as required by the Listing
Rules.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are encouraged to attend
the annual general meeting for which at least 20 clear business days
prior notice is given. The Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive
Officer, Chairmen of the Audit and Remuneration Committees (or in
their absence, other members of the Committee) and external auditors
are available to answer shareholders’ questions at the meeting.
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EERBEE
Report of the Directors

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2010 and the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 49 to 143.

An interim dividend of HK2 cents per ordinary share was paid on
13 January 2010. The directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK10 cents per ordinary share on or about 16 September
2010 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
on 27 August 2010 which, together with the interim dividend paid,
makes a total dividend of HK12 cents per ordinary share for the year.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 148. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.
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Issued Share Capital

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Share Options

A summary of the share option scheme and details of movements in
share options of the Company during the year, together with the reasons
therefor, are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of the
Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements. The details of
movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 53 to 54
of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 March 2010, the Company'’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to HK$142,196,000, of which HK$62,919,000
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$274,000 (2009: HK$729,000).
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Chen CHIANG, GBM (Chairman)

Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer) *
Chi Kin CHIANG

Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Sam Hon Wah NG

Independent Non-executive Directors

Johnson Chin Kwang TAN *
Anish LALVANI +*

Bernard Charnwut CHAN +*
Michael Tze Hau LEE **

*  Members of the Audit Committee
*  Members of the Remuneration Committee

In accordance with Bye-law 189 (viii) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Messrs. Chi Kin CHIANG, Sam Hon Wah NG and Anish LALVANI will
retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on

pages 17 to 20 of this annual report. The senior management of the
Group is also executive directors of the Company.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No director had a material interest in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

At 31 March 2010, the number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 629,187,600; and the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")), as recorded in the register of the Company required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
were set out below.
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(a) Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

HARDFE BT

EBRZ

AEBER i izl BHBES

2R R zER Approximate

ERME Interest in Interest in percentage of the

BEspR Nature of ordinary underlying M3t  MIEE Company’s issued

Name of director interest shares shares* Total Notes ordinary shares

BE EA 3,980,000 - 3,980,000 (1) 0.63%
Chen CHIANG Personal

HMb 398,013,620 - 398,013,620 (3) 63.26%
Other

R & A 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 (1) 0.79%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Personal

BREE fEA 1,744,000 334,000 2,078,000 (1) 0.33%
Chi Kin CHIANG Personal

EYR fEA - 666,000 666,000 (1) 0.11%
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG Personal

REE & A 334,000 - 334,000 (1) 0.05%
Sam Hon Wah NG Personal

BREE S & A 484,000 - 484,000 (1) 0.08%
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN Personal

Anish LALVANI fEA 220,000 - 220,000 (1) 0.03%
Personal

Y BEATAETAZAREERN ZEE AR
BARNR Z B BT 2 AR
e M FEERRARBRITIR
o BRAEEFBERNPEHRRME
31

*  The interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives represent
interests in options granted under the Company’s share option scheme
of which they were unissued shares. The details of such interests are
set out in note 31 to the financial statements.
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(b) AEBCEZERGD ZHFR (b) Long positions in shares of associated corporations
() REBHKREARAAI(EBER (i) Interests in ordinary shares in Chen Hsong Investments Limited
&)z EmiEns (“CH Investments”):

HEBRE

EBITRG

2B

Approximate

REH percentage

ERME 2R of the issued

EEng Nature of 51 Interest in Mi&E shares of

Name of director interest Capacity shares Notes CH Investments

BE Hith 2REFEZNILA 66,044,000 (2) 100.00%
Chen CHIANG Other Founder of
discretionary trusts

R HAh, 2REEREZ 7,823,700 (4) 11.85%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Other BEREHA
Eligible beneficiary of
a discretionary trust

BER Hith Ex I 7,823,700 (5) 11.85%

Chi Kin CHIANG Other BEBXEA
Eligible beneficiary of
a discretionary trust
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(ii) Dr. Chen CHIANG, a director of the Company, is deemed to
be interested in shares and paid-up capital of the following
associated corporations:

15 A % B E B B
ERTRG BK
BEXzBOBIH

Approximate
percentage of the
relevant class of

HEH, issued shares/

BEWERZELE paid-up capital of

B EEER Interest in shares/ B EE associated
Name of associated corporation paid-up capital Notes corporation
Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited I GIEEHEE ) (3) 100.00%

BERERR AR

Equaltex Investment Limited

Gondmyne Limited

HATER AR
Desee Limited
EBAR AR
Desko Limited
=X ERAT]
Goman Limited
= BERAR]
Koyoki Limited
ERBRAR]
Mikia Limited
REBRAF]
Mogin Limited

FEMLHRAFA
Potachi Limited

1 redeemable share

2R AR (3), (6) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

100,0000% & i@ (3), (6) 100.00%
100,000 ordinary shares

2R% EiBAR (3), (7) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2R B 3), (7) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

20% EimAR 3), (7) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2% imAR (3), (7) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2R AR (3), (7) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2R AR (3), (7) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2% AR (3), (7) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares
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G REEE B RER
BERITRG BY
EXzBOBIHL

Approximate
percentage of the
relevant class of

i issued shares/

BEWERZELS paid-up capital of

M EE LB Interest in shares/ MiEE associated

Name of associated corporation paid-up capital Notes corporation

EE#EARAT Lies T @), (7) 100.00%
Parot Limited 2 ordinary shares

MEFR QA Pl giilile (3), (7) 100.00%
Rikon Limited 2 ordinary shares

HEHR QA Pl giilile 3), (7) 100.00%
Semicity Limited 2 ordinary shares

P AR AR] 2R E AR 3), (1) 100.00%
Sibeland Limited 2 ordinary shares

SEBRAT] 2R imAR (3), (7) 100.00%
Sumei Limited 2 ordinary shares

Granwich Limited 1A% @ A% (3), (6) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

ENEEN LN S N 52,570,000/% (3), (6) 75.10%
HERBER AT i
Hong Kong Cad-Cam 52,570,000
Services Limited ordinary shares

Kadom Limited 2R imA (3), (6) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

EEERAGR AR ED 8% & FAxX (3), (6) 80.00%
Keyset Development Limited (Remark) 8 ordinary shares

S (PE)ARAF B4R E AR (3), (8) 100.00%

Callan (China) Limited

3§ ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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G REEE B RER
BERTRE BY
EXBYBIL

Approximate
percentage of the
relevant class of

Rt issued shares/

BEWER 2 ELS paid-up capital of

HEEE LB Interest in shares/ Mz associated

Name of associated corporation paid-up capital Notes corporation

PRI ERR AR 33,593,200% 7T (3), (8) 67.19%
Shanghai Ciro’s Real Estate Co., Ltd. BEWER
US$33,593,200

Oriental Triumph Investments
Limited

Pro-Team Pacific Limited

Tatiara Investment Company Limited

Value Creation Group Limited

EEYRFERR AR
Chen Hsong Logistics Services
Company Limited

R AR AR
Chen Hsong Machinery Company,
Limited

B (FBDIREBR AT
Chen Hsong (PRC) Investment
Company Limited

paid-up capital

IR E AR (3), (9) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

TRE B (3), (6) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

2R AR (3), (6) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

IE B (3), (6) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

5,000,0000% (3), (6) 100.00%
BIRERRIERD
5,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares

50,000,000/% (3), (6) 100.00%
BIRERRTERD
50,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares

MR IS R (3), (6) 100.00%
TRIE AR
2 non-voting
deferred shares
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Notes:

1)

2

Such interests are held in the capacity as beneficial owner.

This represents the collective interest indirectly held by Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited, trustee of two discretionary trusts, namely,
The Chiang Chen Industrial Charity Foundation (“Charity
Foundation”) and The Chiangs’ Family Foundation (“Family
Foundation”), which respectively hold 88.15% and 11.85% of
the issued share capital of CH Investments. By virtue of the SFO,
Dr. Chen CHIANG is deemed to be interested in the aforesaid
discretionary trusts as he is the settlor of both discretionary trusts
and may be regarded as founder of such discretionary trusts.

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited holds 88.15% controlling
interest in CH Investments, in turn, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings
Limited is wholly-owned by Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited. Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited being the trustee of the Charity Foundation in
which, by virtue of the SFO, Dr. Chen CHIANG is deemed to be
interested as he is the settlor of the Charity Foundation and may
be regarded as founder of the Charity Foundation.

Such interests were held by the Family Foundation and
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG is deemed to be interested under the SFO
by virtue of her being one of the eligible beneficiaries of the Family
Foundation.

Such interests were held by the Family Foundation and
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG is deemed to be interested under the SFO by
virtue of him being one of the eligible beneficiaries of the Family
Foundation.

Such interests are held by CH Investments.

Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Gondmyne Limited.
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(8) CH Investments holds 80% controlling interest in Keyset
Development Limited which holds the entire interest of Callan
(China) Limited. Callan (China) Limited which, in turn, holds
67.19% controlling interest in Shanghai Ciro’s Real Estate Co.,
Ltd.. (Remark)

(9) Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Keyset Development Limited.

Remark: The disposal of 2 shares (representing 20% shareholding
interest) of Keyset Development Limited from Chen Hsong
Marketing International Limited to CH Investments was
completed on 24 May 2010. Henceforth, CH Investments
holds 10 shares (representing 100% shareholding interest)
in Keyset Development Limited.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2010, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Details of share options granted to or exercised by the directors or
chief executive of the Company during the year and their outstanding
balances at 31 March 2010 are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, and none
of the directors, chief executive or their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right during the year.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

At 31 March 2010, so far as is known to the directors and chief
executive of the Company, the interests or short positions of substantial
shareholders and other persons in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO were set out below.

I o
RAEQATRPZEFR Long positions in shares of the Company
MAEAREET
EERRMGZ
BHAEsH
Approximate
EEREH percentage of the
BRREE HE 54 Number of MizX Company’s issued
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares Notes ordinary shares
EIIRE EnEAA 398,013,620 (1) 63.26%
CH Investments Beneficial owner
Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings IEEHER 2 398,013,620 (1) 63.26%
Limited Interest of
controlled corporation
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited ZEEA 398,013,620 (1) 63.26%
Trustee
R PREEFEZKIA 398,013,620 (1), (2), (3) 63.26%
Chen CHIANG Founder of
discretionary trust
EmEBA 3,980,000 3) 0.63%
Beneficial owner
JPMorgan Chase & Co. RZIES)EB 2 s 44,133,717 (4) 7.01%
Interest of
controlled corporation
EREEE(BHB)BRAR B 38,230,000 - 6.08%
Schroder Investment Investment manager
Management
(Hong Kong) Limited
Commonwealth Bank of P8 il b P ey 37,648,000 (5) 5.98%

Australia
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Notes:

(1) This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments. Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited is deemed to have interest in the relevant shares by
virtue of being the trustees of the Charity Foundation, the relevant shares
are held through its controlled corporation, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings
Limited which holds 88.15% controlling interest in CH Investments.

(2) The relevant shares are deemed to be interested by Dr. Chen CHIANG by
virtue of the SFO as he is the settlor of the Charity Foundation and he may
be regarded as the founder of the Charity Foundation.

(3) Ms. Jwung Hwa MA, being the spouse of Dr. Chen CHIANG, in the capacity
of interest of spouse, is deemed to be interested in the relevant shares held
by Dr. Chen CHIANG by virtue of the SFO.

(4) These shares were held by corporation controlled directly as to 100% by
JPMorgan Chase & Co. in the capacity of custodian corporation/approved
lending agent. These shares represented shares of the Company in lending
pool.

(5) These shares were held by corporations controlled directly or indirectly as
to 100% by Commonwealth Bank of Australia.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2010, no other parties were
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO as having interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

On 19 March 2007, a master agreement (the “Master Agreement”)
was entered into between Zhenjian Mould & Machinery (Shenzhen)
Company Limited (“CC-SZ”) and Chen Hsong Machinery (Shenzhen)
Company, Limited (“CHM-SZ"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, in which the Company and its subsidiaries including
CHM-SZ would, on a non-exclusive basis, purchase steel from CC-SZ for
a term of three years commencing from 1 April 2007. The transaction
value during the year ended 31 March 2010 amounted to approximately
HK$16,729,000 (net of value-added tax).

The Master Agreement had expired by effluxion of time on 31 March
2010 and the renewal master agreement was entered into by the same
parties on 26 March 2010 for a term of one year commencing on 1
April 2010.

Dr. Chen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, who are directors of the
Company, and their respective associates together control the exercise
of 80% of the voting power at general meetings of Chen Chien Holdings
Limited, which holds the entire equity interest of CC-SZ. Therefore, CC-
SZis a connected person of the Company as defined in the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the purchases contemplated under the Master Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the transactions have been entered into (1) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Company; (2) on normal commercial
terms; and (3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuantto rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the auditors of the Company
have issued a letter to the board of directors of the Company that the
above continuing connected transactions (1) have been approved by
the board of directors of the Company; (2) have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing the transactions;
and (3) have not exceeded the cap disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 19 March 2007.
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Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed amount of public float during the year and up to the date of
this report as required under the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The Group’s emolument policy, including salaries and bonuses, is in line
with the local practices where the Company and its subsidiaries operate.
Share options of the Company were granted to selected employees of
the Group under the share option scheme of the Company for attracting
and retaining high talents.

The Remuneration Committee reviews the Group’s emolument policy
and structure for the remuneration of the directors who are also senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Event After the Reporting Period

On 16 April 2010, Chen Hsong Marketing International Limited (“CH
Marketing”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with CH Investments pursuant to which CH
Marketing conditionally agreed to sell the two shares of HK$1.00 each
in the capital of Keyset Development Limited (“Keyset”), representing
20% of the entire issued share capital of Keyset, to CH Investments for
a consideration of HK$94,740,000 (the “Disposal”). CH Investments
is the controlling shareholder of the Company holding approximately
63.26% of the issued shares of the Company, and is therefore a
connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.11 of the Listing
Rules. As such, the Disposal constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Disposal became unconditional upon the approval of the
independent shareholders (being shareholders of the Company
excluding CH Investments and its associates) of the Company obtained
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 20 May 2010.
The Disposal provided an opportunity for the Group to realize the value
of its investment in Keyset and allow the Group to deploy additional
resources to its core business activities. The Disposal was completed on
24 May 2010 and the net proceeds from the Disposal of approximately
HK$94,000,000 would be used as general working capital of the
Group.

On behalf of the Board

Chen CHIANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 July 2010
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To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Chen Hsong Holdings
Limited set out on pages 49 to 143, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2010,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2010
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street,

Central, Hong Kong

15 July 2010
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/

BE_Z—ZF=-A=1+—HULFE Year ended 31 March 2010

CEMTT) (HK$'000) H1#E Notes 2010 2009
&= REVENUE 6 1,806,334 1,603,107
SHER AR Cost of sales (1,355,571) (1,234,089)
EF Gross profit 450,763 369,018
E M UR A R U 55 F 5 Other income and gains, net 70,445 31,824
HERDHET Selling and distribution expenses (157,549) (191,628)
THE H Administrative expenses (116,536) (115,325)
HpaE&Ua A~ Other operating income/

(X)) Fs (expenses), net (42,708) 13,245
BB R Finance costs 8 (1,856) (4,668)
FE(RE & N A Share of profits less losses

v AR ET 18 of associates 6,137 1,386
RRBLAT R R PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 208,696 103,852
Frg®is Income tax expense 11 (54,778) (16,700)
REERR PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 153,918 87,152
BB ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

RAFERFEEA Equity holders of the Company 153,500 85,786

DVEARRE R Minority interests 418 1,366
153,918 87,152

EATEEFEA EARNINGS PER SHARE

EHEREF ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14

EHARGEN) Basic (HK cents) 24.4 136

B OBM) Diluted (HK cents) 24.4 13.6

REFEEFEMNESZREFEBIHNBIER Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed in

FHIEEL3 - note 13 to the financial statements.

3R ANNUAL REPORT 2010 49




mETHEWER Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-Z—ZF=A=1+—HIFE Year ended 31 March 2010
CE#FT) (HK$’000) 2010 2009
AEEEF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 153,918 87,152
Ht2mEUWE(XH) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE)
BMEEINER 2 Exchange differences on translation
PE H XA of foreign operations 15,459 (11,117)
REEHEDH TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
g FOR THE YEAR 169,377 76,035
BER ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
RAFERFEEA Equity holders of the Company 168,916 74,393
LYIR R Minority interests 461 1,642
169,377 76,035
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2010

CE#FT) (HK$'000) H1#E Notes 2010 2009
kRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y - RE L& Property, plant and equipment 15 773,743 771,742
FEfT T E R Prepaid land lease payments 16 46,004 55,735
GES Goodwill 17 94,931 94 931
A NI Interests in associates 19 18,702 14,780
AL ERRIRE Available-for-sale equity investments 20 - 124,057
BEIERE Held-to-maturity investments 21 - -
BT TR A Deferred tax assets 29 75,289 74,321
BEWE  BWER Deposits for purchases of items of

B property, plant and equipment 19,127 17,499
IEmBNVE EAAGT Total non-current assets 1,027,796 1,153,065
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 22 672,073 704,309
FEWE 5 R EERR Trade and bills receivables 23 723,432 516,082
e BRAZRIER Deposits, prepayments and

E YR 5K other receivables 24 81,489 66,297
A EEREE Available-for-sale equity investment 20 124,057 -
Re RIBITET Cash and bank balances 25 864,191 445 590
MENE E AT Total current assets 2,465,242 1,732,278
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
ENTE 5 REBRERR Trade and bills payables 26 630,539 276,572
HAbER R R Other payables and

JEEtEE accruals 27 282,130 194,122
RITE R+ IR Bank loans, unsecured 28 41,964 37,864
JER IR Tax payable 53,652 12,462
mEN B ELRGT Total current liabilities 1,008,285 521,020
REEERE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,456,957 1,211,258
BEERERRBEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,484,753 2,364,323
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gv.,. SRR & Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—T_TE=-—A=+—A As at 31 March 2010

CEETT) (HK$°000) H17E Notes 2010 2009

FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

BERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 29 6,543 12,169

EEFE NET ASSETS 2,478,210 2,352,154

= EQUITY

EATERBFEA Equity attributable to equity holders

PE(LRER of the Company

BRI Issued share capital 30 62,919 62,883

R Reserves 32 2,401,147 2,275,588
2,464,066 2,338,471

DERRELR Minority interests 14,144 13,683

M AAET Total equity 2,478,210 2,352,154

#7E Chen CHIANG #EE%E Lai Yuen CHIANG
F/EZ Chairman TTIEC 4B, Chief Executive Officer
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HERGZEHREK Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BHE-Z-TF=A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 March 2010
2009
RATERSEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
EEfT Rt EREE EigE
hx  EEE  RE e 28
lssued ~ Share  Capital EAGE EERE -RBE Exchange REER RREE ERAT
it shate  premium redemption  Capital  Statutory  General fluctuation  Retained @i Minority  Total
(B%FT) (HK$000) Notes capital  account  reseve  reseve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Total interests  equity
RZZTN\EHA—B  At1 Apil 2008 62,623 501454 295 51638 109802 2351 175925 1476775 2380863 12041 2392904
ER Total comprehensive
e lien income for the year - - - - - - (11303 8578 74393 1642 7603
Bk Issue of new shares Kl 60 4920 - - - - - - 5180 - 5180
DARIES: {80 Equiy-setfled share
BlRERH option amangements - - - P - - - - 0 - e
RERRIER Transfer from retained profits - - - Bl 7766 - - (8407) - - -
HE-ZEN\E Final dividend
ZA=t-Hi for the year ended
EEIRERE 31 March 2008 - - - - - - - (109417) (109417) - (109417)
kS Interim dividend 3 - - - - - - - (12570 (12577) - (1251
RZFENF
ZA=t-H At 31 March 2009 62883 506374¢ 295 B2308* 117568 23b1F 164,532* 1432,160F 2338471 13683 2,352,154
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

%i;zt —ZEF=A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 March 2010
2010
RARERSEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
2R R EXEE EigE
hx  EEE @B ffa 24
lssed  Share  Capitl EAGE EERE -RBE Exchange REEF RREE BRAH
fit shate  premium redemption  Capital  Statutory  General fluctuation  Retained &5 Minoity  Total
(BEFT) (HK$000) Notes capital  account  reseve  reseve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Total interests  equity
RZETNENA—-B  AtT Apil 2009 62,883 506,374 295 52308 117568 2301 164532 1432160 2338471 13683 2,352,154
TEE Total comprehensive income
e len for the year - - - - - - 15416 153500 168916 461 169377
BTk Issue of new shares K| 3% 668 - - - - - - 704 - 704
RERFEA Transfer from retained profits - - - 42 9039 - - (9281) - - -
HEZEZNE Final diidend
ZR=t-Hi for the year ended
EERERE 31 March 2009 13 - - - - - - - (31442 (31442) - (31442
PERS Interim dividend 13 - - - - - - - (12583)  (12583) - 1258
RZZ-ZF
ZA=t-H At 31 March 2010 62919  507,042¢ 295 B2950* 126607 23b1* 179.948* 1532,304* 2464066 14,144 2478210
* R IE-EF-A=1+—HEEYH * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
MK ZEREBRENGERERE HK$2,401,147,000 (2009: HK$2,275,588,000) in the consolidated

#2,401,147,0007T(=ZFF

2,275,588,0007T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 March 2010

CE#FT) (HK$'000) K17t Notes 2010 2009
REEKIHERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B AT & Profit before tax 208,696 103,852
PR Adjustments for:
B AR Finance costs 8 1,856 4,668
JE(REEZ N T TR Share of profits less losses of associates (6,137) (1,386)
FEHA Interest income 7 (5,052) (2,493)
e Depreciation 7 51,488 60,378
JEN T E R R Recognition of prepaid land lease payments 7 1,832 1,892
HEME - BREREE Gain on disposal of items of
NIBA T HER property, plant and equipment and
-l prepaid land lease payments 7 (41,653) (738)
M - R MR Write-off of items of
2 EHH property, plant and equipment 7 41 26
SRk A G H Write-off of aged liabilities 7 (500) (5,300)
FERERR Write-back of impairment of
HER inventories, net 7 (22,306) (24,425)
FEUWE 5 R EEIRNK Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of
BUE CRlER R );F5E trade and bills receivables, net 7 14,374 (14,725)
DAGHRES MROBBIGHEEF  Equity-settled share option expenses - 29
202,639 121,778
ERR N B 2 BRSRERER Increase in balances with
3N associates - (10,702)
GFER A Decrease in inventories 55,667 8,497
N E 5 R EBIRN Decrease/(increase) in trade
B, (#hn) and bills receivables (222,523) 356,236
Al FENFRIENREAM Increase in deposits, prepayments
JFE LT B SR A0 and other receivables (15,679) (6,431)
ENE S REBRER Increase/(decrease) in trade
#hn, CRd) and bills payables 358,634 (118,363)
E M BRR L FERT Increase/(decrease) in other payables
BELm, Cfd) and accruals 88,278 (40,011)
KEEACRS Cash generated from operations 467,016 311,004
BRFE Interest paid (1,856) (4,668)
REIEENSH Hong Kong profits tax refunded 9 -
EREBNEH Hong Kong profits tax paid - (93)
REEINRIR Overseas taxes refunded 2,688 2,548
BAEINIHIE Overseas taxes paid (21,213) (34,771)
LA 7 IRERAFEE  Net cash flows from operating activities 446,644 274,020
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GEHEMER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE_Z—ZF=-A=1+—HULFE Year ended 31 March 2010
CEETT) (HK$°000) Bt Notes 2010 2009
REERZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
HEEME - BB Purchases of items of property, plant
B and equipment 15 (68,073) (122,090)
HEWE - BE R&E Proceeds from disposal of items of
MIEN i THER property, plant and equipment
FriS5RI8 and prepaid land lease payments 73,403 1,062
B FE Interest received 5,052 2,493
B & Dividend received - 37,800
=L na B WAR S Dividend received from an associate 2,260 -
EEWME - BB LEE Increase in deposits for purchases of items of
2yl property, plant and equipment (1,884) (200)
E SR EE Bk R AR H Increase in bank deposits with
HA={EHz original maturity of more than
TE BRTF SR N three months when acquired (54,510) -
AR ITETOR L, (#80) Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits (66,976) 5,403
WEEK RS HFEE  Net cash flows used in investing activities (110,728) (75,532)
MEXKCRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BITHARFTS A Proceeds from issue of new shares 30 704 5,180
MEIRITER New bank loans 13,722 173,685
BEIRITER Repayment of bank loans (11,454) (161,390)
BERRE Dividends paid (44,025) (121,994)
MEEFZIREREFE  Net cash flows used in financing activities (41,053) (104,519)
RERRLEEY NET INCREASE IN
ZIBHNTEEE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 294,863 93,969
FHI2BE Cash and cash equivalents
MR EEY at beginning of year 418,326 329,798
ME R B8 2 R H R Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 2,163 (5,441)
FRZRE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RESZEY AT END OF YEAR 715,352 418,326
HeRBEEEEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
BEZDW CASH EQUIVALENTS
e RIRITEET Cash and bank balances 25 535,467 407,369
P F R REBE R HAm A Bank deposits with original maturity
TR=EAZEHER of less than three months when acquired 25 179,885 10,957
715,352 418,326
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B AR R & Statement of Financial Position

RN-_E-TFE=F=+—H As at 31 March 2010
CE#FT) (HK$'000) K15+ Notes 2010 2009
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y - RE L& Property, plant and equipment 15 640 738
LTI UNEIL Interests in subsidiaries 18 672,919 696,303
IEMEN B E MG Total non-current assets 673,559 697,541
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
Al K EAth FEUAR R Deposits and other receivables 24 725 725
He RIRTTHET Cash and bank balances 25 55,825 4,574
MENE EMRG Total current assets 56,550 5,299
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
EfhER BRI EETAE  Other payables and accruals 27 14,753 4,776
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 41,797 523
EERE NET ASSETS 715,356 698,064
= EQUITY
BT Issued share capital 30 62,919 62,883
& Reserves 32 652,437 635,181
T4t Total equity 715,356 698,064

# 7= Chen CHIANG # B 5t Lai Yuen CHIANG

£ /& Chairman TTIECABE, Chief Executive Officer
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Chen Hsong Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at 13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate holding
company is Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited, a company incorporated in
the Bahamas. Chen Hsong Investments Limited (“CH Investments”),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong, is the Company’s immediate
holding company.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CONSOLIDATION

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise
indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

21 RBURGEEEE) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CONSOLIDATION (continued)

RAEMBHRRBFBEARTRENBAT
(2HERA SEDEE_T—TF=
A=+—HLLFEZHHE®RE - WEat
BER BB A A2 SEL R AR
—H - TAMBAR 2 FERERER
(BIARSEEBSIEFI#Z B)REE KR
B ¥HESAREEEHRRIEAR
1k - AEBERERRIRZ RS KRR
oA - BRMKRERBRIE
AR AR B RART A -

DB R s 1E FF R AN R IR H I IR
BREARF ZMBARZEEREE
FETHE 2 o

B BERRESS

AEBEERAFE 2 HBHRAE IR
A TR RRERTME BN MRS %
U

BAMG®RE  BEMHWEEN
HERIZE 15 K F1SE NN
TRGTER  BEHEHEEL
FE27RIER] REBGTEA

F27HARE K
IR EHEK —
RHI g2 ]
HIAZEHIEESE
BERR]ZIRE
A ZAERT

BEVBMELER BEEWBRSE
FE25(EFT) HERIE25RIER]
KRS —
EFB 11T Rt 35

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2010. Adjustments are made
to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. Income,
expenses and unrealized gains and losses resulting from intercompany
transactions and intercompany balances within the Group are
eliminated on consolidation in full.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders not
held by the Group in the results and net assets of the Company’s
subsidiaries.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of HKFRSs and HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial

Amendments

Statements - Cost of an Investment in
a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity
or Associate

HKFRS 2 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment - Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures - Improving
Disclosures about Financial

Instruments

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 18 Amendment* Amendment to Appendix to
HKAS 18 Revenue - Determining
whether an entity is acting as a principal
or as an agent

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements —
Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9
and HKAS 39
Amendments

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) - Int 9
Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - Embedded Derivatives
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2B BERRIEERE (&) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)
BB (BRI 7%
EREXE
g) R
#1355 BE RS 512 HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
%155 B b E B T e HK(IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate
£165% JEINETEFIREZ HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in
Ep a Foreign Operation
F£185% BEFEEEE HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
(BZZZNF (adopted from 1 July 2009)
+tA—BREMR)
BB RS ZIEEBUERE Improvements to HKFRSs ~ Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
P Py S AR 7 &3] (October 2008)**
—EEN\F
+A)*
* MAZETNFEBUBRE LR K * Included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued in May 2009).
E(ZEZNFRAEM) -
= REBRMAR_ZZSNF+ABEMZFT **  The Group adopted all the improvements to HKFRSs issued in October

BB BmELER 2ok - EHES
B SRS R ESS R]/ #F E L B 3
TBNEER ORIASEER -G8 E subsidiary, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
R—KWE R a] 2 R EZ RN H July 2009.

M_TBTHELA—BRZEBBZE

FEHAR 3K -

2008 except for the amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations - Plan to sell the controlling interest in a

BRUATHE BT LENERUERT) & Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of HKAS 1
BT EMEERESR 2 EEL 2 (Revised) and HKFRS 8, the adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs
BRI - NS REBET has had no significant financial effect on these financial statements
EEMERE AW EN ZSVIBHRE
EEEAMBHEREZEM BRI
ERZ S BRLBELASRED -

and there have been no significant changes to the accounting policies
applied in these financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are

as follows:

(@)

(b)

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation and
disclosures of financial statements. The revised standard separates
owner and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes
in equity includes only details of transactions with owners, with all
non-owner changes in equity presented as a single line. In addition,
this standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income,
with all items of income and expense recognized in profit or loss,
together with all other items of recognized income and expense
recognized directly in equity, either in one single statement, or
in two linked statements. The Group has elected to present two
statements.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment Reporting, specifies
how an entity should report information about its operating
segments, based on information about the components of the
entity that is available to the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of allocating resources to the segments and assessing
their performance. The standard also requires the disclosure
of information about the products and services provided by the
segments, the geographical areas in which the Group operates,
and revenue from the Group’s major customers. The adoption
of the standard has no effect on the financial position or results
of operations of the Group. It does, however, result in certain
changes in the presentation and disclosures of notes to financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2010

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 1 Amendment

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards’

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Additional
Exemptions for First-time Adopters?

Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Limited
Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions’

Business Combinations?

Financial Instruments®
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2010

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 Amendment

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14

Amendments

HK(IFRIC) = Int 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19

Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements!

Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues®

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items!

Amendments to HK (IFRIC) — Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement®

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners!

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments?
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23T EHERERNERBUBERSE 2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

R ()

BRMBHRE  BAUHWS
REAFSSRIER]  ERIFSRIERT
(MA=ZZN FELHEFRD
F+ A% BERCHIEE
2 BB RE—iEhE
WEERZ R—FK B A]
) IR

TR FAR ME-BTrEEL
(R=ZETN HEZ
FH-ALE) KA

B EatESN - BB EEHEAG IR —
FENFR — T FFHEBUEHRE
BRI 2CE - AREIIEZREBWH
WEEREL ZER] - TR HEHRT
BEB B - BAMBREERF2
5 ARG EREISH - BA(ERER
MBERERERES) —REFIRLE
BERMBEHRERERZES) —2ES
165 ZIER TR =TT NF LA —HIMA
‘AR FEBRER - MEBEY R
EERIFESH - BEMBHRELERIFES
S BAGRERELN BEGE
AIFT75 - BAGHEUNEL7H - BB
BRI SE365E kBB &R RISE39
BTN T —FF—A BN
‘A FERRER - ESEER K
BROFE L BEEGR - AEEE
SR EAE27RMAEER] 2 BB
WE LRI ERT FBE MR FRY
R-ZE—TFL A ARG ZF
EHIRAR - MEBMHREERE]L
S BEMBWMEENFR  BES
HERIFL - AR ERFE345 R
o (BRMEHRERBRES) 28
BIF AR _E——F—F—H
SKIAR PR 2 SFE EIR AR -

REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 5 Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current
included in Assets Held for Sale and
Improvements to Discontinued Operations —

HKFRSs issued

in October 2008

Plan to sell the controlling interest
in a subsidiary’

HK Interpretation 4 Leases — Determination of the Length of
(Revised in December Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong

2009) Land Leases?

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued /mprovements to
HKFRSs 2009 and 2010 which set out amendments to a number of
HKFRSs primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. The amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38, HK(IFRIC) — Int 9
and HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009 while the amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 8,
HKAS 1, HKAS 7, HKAS 17, HKAS 36 and HKAS 39 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010 although there are
separate transitional provisions for each standard or interpretation. The
amendments to HKFRS 3 and transition requirements for amendments
arising as a result of HKAS 27 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2010 while the amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7,
HKAS 1, HKAS 34 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
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23T EHERERNERUBERSE 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

R ()

PRZZETZAFEA-BRUERBZ
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FREHRAE
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REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application, but is not yet in
a position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have
significant impact on its results of operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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FESHBRBESE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
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An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group
has a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests in associates
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interests in the associates, except where
unrealized losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement, whereby
the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity. The joint
venture operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the other
parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the
capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration of the
joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be realized upon
its dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint venture’s operations
and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the venturers,
either in proportion to their respective capital contributions, or in
accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Joint ventures (continued)

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Company has unilateral control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) an associate, if the Company does not have unilateral or joint
control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not less than
20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and is in a position to
exercise significant influence over the joint venture; or

(c) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with HKAS 39,
if the Company holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20% of the
joint venture’s registered capital and has neither joint control of,
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence over, the joint
venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is on or after 1
January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is initially recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position as an asset at cost and is subsequently
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March.
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(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units), to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognized. An impairment loss recognized for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss
on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance
is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of
and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Excess over the cost of business combinations
Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost

of acquisition of subsidiaries, after reassessment, is recognized
immediately in the income statement.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)

()

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
(i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the
Group; (i) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or any of its holding companies;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred
toin (a) or (c);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (c) or (d); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it
arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortization) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalized in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

EEZETFT - 1RELFE Buildings in Hong Kong —  Over the lease terms
BB AN R - +HREATE Buildings outside Hong Kong - 15 to 60 years
ZEF
BE - e - ZETHF Plant, machinery, furniture — 2to 15 years
BRI H A EE and other equipment

IKAFME LI AR R AT E R -

fWEYE - BFELRERRB Z& D&
ﬂﬁﬁ{fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ : EZIEE ZRARIRE TR E
ENECHRERD - EREEs & arTET
=
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Freehold land is not depreciated.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognized in the income statement in
the year the asset is derecognized is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plants under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalized and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-
to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are recognized
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include available-for-sale investments, cash
and bank balances, trade and bills receivables and other receivables.
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(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortization and the loss arising from impairment are
recognized in the income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity when the Group
has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost less any
allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortization and the loss arising from impairment are recognized
in the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are neither classified as
held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debts
securities in this category are those which are intended to be held for
an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (i) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (ii) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets whether the
ability and intention to sell them in the near term are still appropriate.
When the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets and management’s intent to do so significantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets in rare circumstances. Reclassification to loans and receivables
is permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of loans
and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability to hold these
assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity. The reclassification to
the held-to-maturity category is permitted only when the entity has the
ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale category,
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognized
in equity is amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference between
the new amortized cost and the expected cash flows is also amortized
over the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If
the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to the income statement.
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(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets
is determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For financial instruments
where there is no active market, the fair value is determined using
appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques include using
recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in
a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in the
income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to
the Group.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the income
statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognized in the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognized in the income statement.
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Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The determination
of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognized in the income statement — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in the
income statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available-for-sale are not reversed through the income statement.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognized directly
in other comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the receive cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (i) the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.



BA SRR M AL

—E-TFEZA=+—H

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

3. FESTHHERBERE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BEREASHEE(E)

AR B 2 R E W ZIEEEFTSIR
ERBZENRE AL EXRTHE 1
W imE R (REBZIBEE 2 BARHLD
% M B3R - HI%EE%E%IEé{FZ? %ll
% F ZIBAEBERAR - TR E
EA i%ﬁf&EZIﬁéé RZIBERAT
AEETEREFEE CSEEEER
B ETIEREAREERE 2 &
ER 2 EEGE -

FESMEASERCBREEFLZ
—IHRE  CEEREEDAZBREEL
J?\EEETE&$;’%%/J§5&Z1H 2E
ERABREE RE)FE

EEMEeE

Vet KAt &

BB MR ERRFAEHSBE
AN IR T @ S
A ERRERS IR AR
o {E B T RMITE TAGAERT
) - ARERERREEEL SR
8BS -

rEERABERRATERER - MW
BERLER  AINMLEEREERS
PR o

AEBZeRBEBERNES KRR
FRA - Ef AR M ERTTE R -

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments

in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in the case
of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables, other
payables and bank loans.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification
as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate
method amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortization is
included in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the income statement.
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(continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to be realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realizable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank balances and bank
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and bank

balances comprise cash on hand, bank balances and bank deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Provisions

A provisionis recognized when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on certain
products are recognized based on sales volume and past experience
of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present values
as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e inrespectoftaxable temporary differences associated with interests
in subsidiaries and associates, where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses,
tothe extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
interests in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognized to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b) service fee income, when the services have been rendered:;
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(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established.

Pre-operating expenses

Pre-operating expenses represent expenses incurred prior to the
commencement of commercial operations and are charged to the
income statement when incurred.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated

at cost and subsequently recognized on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than Hong Kong dollars. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a certain percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the Group operated
a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme (the “DCRB
Scheme”) for those employees who were eligible and had elected
to participate in the DCRB Scheme. The DCRB Scheme operates
in a similar way to the MPF Scheme, except that when an
employee leaves the Group prior to his/her interest in the DCRB
Scheme vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group would be reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme (the “Central
Scheme”) which is operated by the local municipal governments.
The contributions payable by these subsidiaries to the Central
Scheme, which are based on a certain percentage of the salaries
of their employees, are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the Central
Scheme.
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—E-TF=-A=+—H 31 March 2010
3. FEEHBRBESE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
EEERNE) Employee benefits (continued)
(a) RikesrE| (&) (a) Pension schemes (continued)
IBIE G EAFEELRES - K&E As required by the Taiwanese Labour Standard Law, the Group’s
BEESE 2 WEBARRIL —IERNK subsidiaries in Taiwan operate a funded defined benefits pension
EREEFBRARSEEI(&EETED) - scheme (the “Old Scheme”) and make monthly contributions to
WBE A RZEIREESHIE A the retirement fund to meet employees’ retirement and termination
B ERMERKRMZIERIG ZEF benefits entitlements. The fund is administered by the Employees’
ZRNERBSHEL TRINEFRSE Retirement Fund Committee (the “Committee”) and is deposited
BLEg([Z8€])EE  WUE under the Committee’s name with a government approved
8@ ZEFA—EEBATIEE financial institution, which acts as the trustee. The expected costs
BB A SR - RZETE of providing pensions under the Old Scheme are charged to the
FHRfLRIKSATEETEAN - & & income statement over the periods during which the employees
ERHEMRETEBRESEHE provide the related services to the Group'’s subsidiaries in Taiwan.

AR HIR AU R R AR o

N-_EERE  §EHFES] TH In 2005, the Taiwan government amended the related pension
BRRIRSETE - N TRREK scheme by adding a new contributory pension scheme (the “New
Bl T A ERE I RREET Scheme”) in the Labour Pension Act, which became effective on 1
gl Frstal) > W T RF A July 2005. According to the amended retirement regulations, the
—HAER - RIBIEFTHERKEA - employees could choose to either select the New Scheme or to
EERIETZREMTEIEEE stay with the Old Scheme whatever they want. The obligation of the
2 o AEFEEEE B A TH Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan to those employees selecting the
BETHTENEENETREE New Scheme is to contribute the required portion of the monthly
BRIRE AR TSRO T compensation, to the government designated account since the
HIFEERFE  BEAEEERE election, while the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan are still liable
MEBARMBEEEIRETENR-_Z under the Old Scheme for the portion pertaining to the service
THE+A—BRIBERERGSFEN years prior to 1 July 2005.

#o o
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3. TESHERBER)

EEEAE) Employee benefits (continued)

(b) ERRIENZNKZS

(b) Share-based payment transactions

RABRNBRAES - BEE
BEBBAAEETRERMZEE
BAL - RENEE(BRESR)S
S BHR AR £ AR B A T2 20 3R
Mz 2B RABIABESNRZS] -

HEBETR _ET-_F+—At
AZRABRESNRZKARTI2E
REEHNAEFE - RFET
SMNEB L ERTERA —BAEAETE -

VAR SZ A 52 5 B AR A 22 R AR (B
T IRGNERDIRR LIRS
AP EIARER - BB EHRE R
BEEHEARARBX R ZHER
M RE S RREEBRER - AR
RAKEABREKSRBORA
TAZENREM - 5 HRK
BmRZHBGEETA - XA
MAERFORRBR M2 EF

BRIERE AR A0 BB B A R T A TR Bk
FERBIEMH - RISKALESBRBRE
BT EWERYIE - BR
FTE HAM R &, IRISHIERGE
KOGERK - BN S IE SR B G
EHED - ZERESeRECE
EREERIE -

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognized as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

3. FEETHHERBERE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

BERF(E)

Employee benefits (continued)

(b) ERBRIENSZIXKXE(E) (b) Share-based payment transactions (continued)
& DARSAE S A SREN A IS R TR -
SRRV L - BIMERI &
BT — M2 BRI
KT o ESN o fRIRIEET B BAY T

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognized as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognized for any modification that increases

8 EAERT S RENBRERN Y
RN EBFTIEN - SHE
BEREMANE - RIERZFER]
R -

B DARBHE ST SRBMRE SRR - @1R1F
BHENEHEERCEE - R
fe) AR FERR A (AR S th & BB R, -
It BIEART G BA S B SR 8155
HE N2 IR BRI M2 BB
& o AR - MFESH R TIN A (R R
REGFTRM - WIEERRBE AN
BB - AR R R E
EERPTILHAR A R AA BNV E RT B
2 o R ARIEREER 5 2 BB
A BRI T AMR

the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognized for the award is recognized immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph. All cancellations of
equity-settled transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

BERA Borrowing costs
EERARESEAHARNERGZRERE Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the income statement
S e in the period in which they are incurred.
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4, EXRESHE R A 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

mELASEEY B mAR - BIEEAED
AREFERREH Rz e - X
BEMABUNRSABBEZZRBBZ
HE (AR R - A - ERE

fEET 2 M EE EE A SRS BURRN AR IR
RYEEERABREEFLEAH

%go

H R

RERAEEZ @ BERBRET - €12
B T oIS M MR A ER 2
EERBEATE 2 HH

@) EEHIE

BTEEELGHBRRMEIBEER
MEZBEARENBFER - K&
/A B EREBEELFE - 5
BIRFHA(DB L LR EEE
BEZEHAFEEEBEZXT
EHENFE  QEERHERS
ESBERBReNEBREFEF -
MBERBESRERFEEMREENL
RIFHERMRT - ROBERSRE
BRIAES TERREFERDR
EFRARENEELLRIR - HWE
I B PTIE A LORTERMEKF Z BRaR
(BERREREBRMAITREY
BREERR)AE  SERER
FTRIREFEEREATE -

(b) 2EREELZ

REEERTE RS BIREAR BRS
EEERETHBARD IR
BEHRHSN - TR B R
ML HIE - NREERR - HER
AERZ RGN T EDIK - AIH
IRRTIRINE -

ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements:

(a) Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has to exercise
judgementinthe area of assetimpairment, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not been in existence;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.

(b) Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for withholding
taxes arising from the distributions of dividends from certain
subsidiaries according to the relevant tax jurisdictions is subject
to judgement on the timing of the payment of the dividend. The
Group considered that if the profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future, then no withholding taxes should be provided.
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CEIROLELESES

REFREH N —MBEFEZEENA
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iz AEEERKET o HFHEA
BEEASEERARCERE
i 2 TEHAR HGR & R EEREET -
MEREABTREFEZERS
REZRE WN-_ZT—ZTF=A
—t+—H BEZEREABE
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(b) FRREEZIGE

AEBZEEEERRMRERR
2B S RSREFER
B 2 BREE SRR R FEIRIHEK
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ZUERRE FBHE 2 BB RS
WRFTIERIE © BN - IEHIHETT
AFHEMBERE  WRERE®
EHEMEHRIZREFERRE
FHERIE ©

(c) EWESREERZREZ Ih5
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Notes to Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed as
below.

(a) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill as at
31 March 2010 was HK$94,931,000 (2009: HK$94,931,000).
More details of the impairment assessment are given in note 17.

(b) Estimation regarding impairment of inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventory ageing analysis
on a periodic basis for those aged inventories. This involves
comparison of the carrying value of the aged inventory items
with the respective fair value less costs to sell. The purpose is
to ascertain whether impairment is required to be made in the
financial statements for any obsolete and slow-moving items. In
addition, physical counts on all inventories are carried out on a
periodic basis in order to determine whether impairment needs
to be made in respect of any obsolete and defective inventories
identified.

(c) Estimation regarding impairment of trade and bills receivables

In determining whether impairment of trade and bills receivables
is required, the Group takes into consideration the ageing status
and the likelihood of collection. Following the identification
of objective evidence for potential impairment of debts, the
responsible personnel will discuss with the relevant customers and
report to management on the recoverability. Individual impairment
allowance is only made for those impaired receivables that are
unlikely to be collected.
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5. KEHT|ER 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

REEETBUFREMHETEHNE
FEmM - EEMS - AREREEE
FHaEy S TREBEML - A 1NI=
AR RELEDE

(i) FEXEREES:

i) & R

(i) EAEGINEIR o

EEEE I RERAERZEENHZ
B ULBRD B MFRME T EIE
HORTE » D BPRIRIRIBE TR Z R
A, (B 18) Mt 8 2 Al 3 E 2 5P
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NRBRELER AR E

ARERLEN M2 BARBEANHE -

The Group is principally involved in the manufacture and sale of plastic
injection moulding machines and related products. For management
purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on the
geographical location of customers and has three reportable operating
segments as follows:

(i) Mainland China and Hong Kong;

(i) Taiwan; and

(iii) Other overseas countries.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure
of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax.

Segment assets exclude interests in associates, deferred tax assets

and cash and bank balances except pledged bank deposits. Segment
liabilities exclude bank loans, tax payable and deferred tax liabilities.

There are no significant sales between the reportable operating
segments.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2010

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following tables present revenue, results, certain assets, liabilities
and expenditure information for the Group’s operating segments for the

e - 25 - BETEE  aBEREZE years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009.
#} o
HEMIEFN
o ER Uk DERHELE
Segment revenue Segment results
from external customers
TEE Group
CEMTFT) (HK$'000) 2010 2009 2010 2009
B R B S B Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,359,483 981,092 206,625 80,536
B Taiwan 108,624 188,902 10,419 15,070
EyFINEIR Other overseas countries 338,227 433,113 21,061 42,308
1,806,334 1,603,107 238,105 137,914

e IEENR Reconciliation of results of

RRBE AT R operating segments

FEWT - to profit before tax is as follows:
DI EE Operating segment results 238,105 137,914
KD WA R = Unallocated income and gains 5,052 2,493
ERAESTH Corporate and unallocated expenses (38,742) (33,273)
BhE R Finance costs (1,856) (4,668)
FE(EE &2 A Share of profits less losses

AR E R of associates 6,137 1,386
BRI A Profit before tax 208,696 103,852
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—T—ZF=A=+—H 31 March 2010
5. REDHER(E) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
PHEE PEWEE
Segment assets Segment liabilities
REE Group
CE#FT) (HK$ "000) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Hp AR Mainland China
LEB and Hong Kong 2,333,377 2,090,431 733,989 365,296
aE Taiwan 112,520 148,011 65,646 46,502
EMFINEIR Other overseas countries 183,288 139,474 113,034 58,896
2,629,185 2,377,916 912,669 470,694
RESE N AR Interests in associates 18,702 14,780 - -
RKEHEE Unallocated assets 845,151 492 647 - -
RN AE Unallocated liabilities - - 102,159 62,495
3,493,038 2,885,343 1,014,828 533,189
AhABER
Other segment information
BRbEEDR/ (288
HEEE
TEREH EFBETE /(A Impairment losses EXEY
Depreciation and Other non-cash charged / (reversed) in the Capital
amortization expenses,/ (income) income statement expenditure
yis-3c| Group
(B%71) (HK$ 000) 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
HEAEREE Mainland China and Hong Kong 4743 8164 (41,622) (678)  (12,144) (38831 65481 1158
8E Taiwan 1,126 2017 10 (3) 55 680 774 1,742
EthGNER Other overseas countries 4,760 2089 - 20 4157 (99 1818 5,063
53,320 62270 (41,612 (683) (7932  (39,150) 68,073 122090
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5. R&ENHFER (&) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
ERBEE
Non-current assets
AEH Group
(EEFIT) (HK$'000) 2010 2009
B KRE BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 829,769 965,417
933,805 1,063,964

bt IR B EE R VR EEMEH The non-current asset information above is based on the location of
BN E AR EEIEEE assets and excludes interests in associates and deferred tax assets.
FTE o

6. W= 6. REVENUE
Wk (IMARER 7 E2E5E ) IEF AN H Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net invoiced
ERERE O RERENESTM - m value of goods sold during the year, after allowances for returns and
TEREEERFEZRS - trade discounts, excluding intra-group transactions.
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—E-TF=A=+—H 31 March 2010
7. BRELADZRA 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
RNEBZBRBATENDHR (GO The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
HIEIR
CE#FT) (HK$'000) Bt Notes 2010 2009
EHFERA Cost of inventories sold 1,355,571 1,234,089
e Depreciation 15 51,488 60,378
TE LM B R 2 TR Recognition of prepaid land lease payments 16 1,832 1,892
HEME - BEMEE Gain on disposal of items of
NMIB b FHE R property, plant and equipment and
i prepaid land lease payments* (41,653) (738)
L E N YN L] Write-off of items of
2R property, plant and equipment* 15 41 26
Y+ RIEF L Minimum lease payments under operating
HETZH&ERETH leases of leasehold land and buildings 5,691 11,745
MR FREER - Research and development costs*** 18,669 16,806
= EREM BN < Auditors’ remuneration 1,769 1,703
BIRMZE (E5ie Employee benefit expenses (excluding
BroN—BTFE9) directors’ emoluments — note 9):
T & K3 Wages and salaries 172,408 192,497
VARG #E ST TR BE AR i B R Equity-settled share option expenses - 8
RIREFT B Pension scheme contributions 12,481 15,095
BN E 5 R EEIRN Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of
BB, CRERE ) FEE > trade and bills receivables, net*** 14,374 (14,725)
GFERERE Write-back of impairment of
SRR inventories, net** (22,306) (24,425)
PE W 7= EL SRR Foreign exchange differences, net*** 562 (27,710)
FBUTA * Interest income* (5,052) (2,493)
SRR B E 2 T Write-off of aged liabilities* (500) (5,300)
ERERGIIE” Proceeds from assignment of debts* - (8,944)
* ZEEBCDBRERGERERZIEM *  These items are included in “Other income and gains, net” on the face of
WA R Wzs 58 A o the consolidated income statement.
= ZIEADBERGAENFER ZIEEK **  This item is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
AJA o income statement.
o ZEIEEEBRERGRERER 2 Ei *** These items are included in “Other operating income/(expenses), net” on
IR () F8E A - the face of the consolidated income statement.
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8. EEKA 8. FINANCE COSTS
REE Group
(BEFor) (HK$'000) 2010 2009
RAEFAZHEEZ Interest on bank loans
IRITERF B wholly repayable within five years 1,856 4,668

9. EEME

KREABAERHMAERRA(HBER

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments for the year disclosed pursuant to the Rules

)z EmRRIREB R REDIE161
R FREEMESEENT

Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and Section 161 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

AEH Group
(CE®Fr) (HK$'000) 2010 2009
e Fees:
WITES Executive directors - -
BN IERITES Independent non-executive directors 690 676
HEie : Other emoluments:
e - R R B Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 9,283 11,258
FIREMRIELT Performance related bonuses 7,741 -
VARG #E S 5 O R AR 4 B R Equity-settled share option expenses - 21
RIREFH B Pension scheme contributions 48 48
17,762 12,003

EFE - REAFBRETE - BES
DEFRENRETAREERTE
Pt HAERER M HRRER M
3l ZEBBENAFERERNE
WaERPHER  EAFERRELAG
H BEEBE_TENF=A=1—
AIEFEzHBHRRNZEBEC /L
MEEHMEHHE -
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In prior years, certain directors were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group, under the share option schemes of the
Company, further details of which are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which had been recognized
to the income statement over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2009 was included in the above directors’
emoluments disclosures.
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31 March 2010

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

T year were as follows:

REE Group

(B8 For) (HK$'000) 2010 2009

PR EE ¢ A Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN 150 150

Anish LALVANI4c 4 Mr. Anish LALVANI 195 195

fRE Bt Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN 180 180

FFERE Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE 165 151
690 676

FR - WEEMMES N TBLIE
HWITER(CZETNF  8) -

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-
executive directors during the year (2009: Nil).

(b) HITEE (b) Executive directors
2010
-
BER DYE $30
ENFlE ®E NERE Bifg
Salaries,  HMATEAL ER  GHEftE
allowances Performance Equity-settled Pension Hemst
&  and benefits related  share option scheme Total
(EEFT) (HK$'000) Fees in kind bonuses  expenses contributions emoluments
BERT Dr. Chen CHIANG - 3,253 2,712 - - 5,965
BBt Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 1,975 2,611 - 12 4,598
BEBis Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1,659 1,750 - 12 3421
EYREE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,377 374 - 12 1,763
REERE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,019 294 - 12 1,325
- 9,283 7,741 - 48 17,072
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9. EEME(E) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) BITEE(E) (b) Executive directors (continued)

2009
M
BER MR
BNHE R WBRE Bife
Salaries,  HMURA BR  GEMR
allowances Performance Equity-settled Pension Hemst
¢  and benefits related  share option scheme Total
(EEFr) (HK$'000) Fees in kind bonuses  expenses contributions emoluments
BEEL Dr. Chen CHIANG - 4,063 - - - 4,063
BB T Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2481 - - 12 2,493
BERELE Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1,969 - - 12 1,981
EMRSE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,590 - - 12 1,602
REFERE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,155 - 21 12 1,188
- 11,258 - 21 48 11,327

ER-_TT)\FRK 2HEERY
2 ESWTEFERRAZERERY B
BT REBE L TREART0% -
BEBEE  BRRAEAERREES.
ERERFI0%  2EHH-ZZN
F+-A—BRBRER  BEEAEEER
HEENTESRAGENREAL -
HREFREERBFERSREHPIE
B MEBEZEENBREBE - FTEH
TEERE K RERERTHIEE A
10% WH-_Z—TF=A—HAE4E
Mo ERTESRBBEEN WITES
2 ERNF N 218 = A RIS e Fr

ZEBKFE -
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Due to the adverse effects of the global financial tsunami in late 2008,
the executive directors had voluntarily agreed to effect a temporary
reduction of 30% of basic remuneration in the cases of Dr. Chen CHIANG
and Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and 20% of basic remuneration in the cases
of Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG and Mr. Sam
Hon Wah NG, all with effect from 1 December 2008 until the business
of the Group recovers and when the executive directors consider
appropriate. In view of the global economy started and continued to
recover from the financial tsunami and the business operation of the
Group had become stable, all the executive directors had agreed to
change the rate of temporary reduction of their basic remuneration
to 10% with effect from 1 March 2010. The basic remuneration of
the executive directors would be resumed to the original levels as
contained in their service agreements when the executive directors
considered appropriate.
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—ZF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2010
E=MEe#E) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
FAN - AR —BEBTFEENZE During the year, one director of the Company exercised share options,
=F=At+—BHEXRZEREMES which had been granted on 11 March 2003 to acquire 334,000
334,000/ AR 7]z LmA% - FFIBRE ordinary shares of the Company, details of which are set out in note
HHMEROWAIIHT] - ZZEIER 31 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which
A EZGBHRTRERTER  EQ had been recognized to the income statement over the vesting period,
FERELEHE R —ZEE was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
NE=ZRA=T—HIEFEZHHEHREN financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009 was included
ZeWORELIEEMEHEE - in the directors’ emoluments disclosures.
TR AEBIWEL TESINE ASE During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
HRHIMAREESEAIMARNERR 2 directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
SREN - SKEERRES(E o compensation for loss of office.
TEEBEHEZES 10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FN - AEEEsWEe v EBERTERS The five highest paid employees during the year included five (2009:
(ZZEZTNF  AR)EE - HMlee R five) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in note 9 to the
B H5 R R 5EOH T o financial statements.
FREH X H 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
KEBFAGRNE B ZERE&2F - Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2009:
WL EBFEHIRI6L5% (ZEETN 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
F:165%)MEFEHEE - = the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
2o M FLIE Bl iR AN B & A S T4 at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the
HR,AAER ZIBITREAHE - Group operates.
REE Group
CBEETT) (HK$'000) 2010 2009
BNEY : Current:
REERIEXL H Charge for the year
&% Hong Kong 8,056 16
ﬁ\%ﬁlﬂﬂluﬁi Elsewhere 33,871 20,285
BAFEIREE Underprovision in prior years 16,792 2,363
IRIE — KaF29 Deferred — note 29 (3,941) (5,964)
REFRIAS Tax charge for the year 54,778 16,700
&35 ANNUALReporT 2000 103
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FABRBATE R B AR A A 7 R B
NEIFMEER Bl EE R 2 R E Rt
(B ERI2NZE25%) 2 B H -
BRERB R E 2 BIE L 2 AN
T

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rates, ranging from 12% to 25%, for the countries/jurisdictions
in which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

rEE Group
CE#FT) (HK$'000) 2010 2009
FrEE R Profit before tax 208,696 103,852
AT EE 2 HIA Tax at the statutory tax rates 43,707 17,132
ERIE 17 it 75 1 h8% Tax concessions,” lower tax rates for

2RISR, EHR R R specific provinces and local authority (20,284) (10,511)
TR B H IR IE Effect on opening deferred tax

k7% of changes in rates 375 821
REBRP A EAREME Effect of tax on the equity transfer of

(+PEDMBARZ the People’s Republic of China

IREEEENIA 2 2 (the “PRC”) subsidiaries of the Group - 10,000
RAHOFLZ Expenses not deductible for tax 17,031 11,397
ARG NTRIE 2 WA Income not subject to tax (9,793) (16,269)
KRR 2 AN FEHIEE B Tax losses for the year not recognized 6,950 2,674
& iR BT IR 18 Tax losses from previous periods utilized - (907)
BT HAR BN AR 1A Adjustments in respect of current tax of

2R previous periods 16,792 2,363
AEERIBZ M Tax charge for the year 54,778 16,700

REBE TR BEARELE ZHELRR]
RINERERE  ZEHBARZEM
EREMNEEFEERCBNTEMREG
B MRERZ =ZFRERR50% 2+
BIFT1S AL
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Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises and are exempted from the income
tax of the PRC for two years starting from the first profitable year of
operations, and are entitled to a 50% relief from the income tax of the
PRC for the following three years.
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GBI (&)

R-ZEZLF=A+T A 2BARRK
KA BBTECRAETA(FHEE
FRBOE]D) REBHRER —ETLF+ =
ARNBREMGHIERAR - B =TTN
F—A—BBER - RIBFERAEH
o R RINERENAEREE T
FNF—A— B8 —R25% ° R
R RAEPRABM AR L ZA
MERAB SR TR B E R ERM DR
M5 - MEEAEHREHEFEEMS
BER —ZETN\F—A—BERZER
FRHEEREZHIEE25% B Al
BREN—BRE R RESREMSHE
HRegRenhs  ATREZAZART
B BEEZREEHRERAL -

RO TEERFTEABEEF

HE-_Z—ZF=-A=1+—RHILFE
RARERFFE AELGEREFNPE
ERARA R IEREE T A BT
#60,613,000C( —EZ NF : B
11,099,0007%) (Ff17E32) °

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

11.

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The National People’s Congress approved the Corporate Income Tax
(“CIT”) Law of the PRC (the “New CIT Law”) on 16 March 2007 and the
State Council announced the Detail Implementation Regulations on 6
December 2007, which was effective from 1 January 2008. According
to the New CIT Law, the income tax rates for both domestic and foreign
investment enterprises have been unified at 25% effective from 1
January 2008. However, for enterprises which were established before
the publication of the New CIT Law and were entitled to preferential
treatments of reduced CIT tax rate granted by relevant tax authorities,
the new CIT rate will be gradually increased from the preferential rate
to 25% within five years after the effective date of the New CIT Law on
1 January 2008. Enterprises that are currently entitled to exemptions
from or reductions in the standard income tax rate for a fixed term may
continue to enjoy such treatment until the fixed term expires.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2010 includes a profit of HK$60,613,000
(2009: HK$11,099,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 32).
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31 March 2010

13. k& 13. DIVIDENDS

(BMFor) (HK$'000) 2010 2009
U AR e M T T T B AR Additional final dividend

ZEFEINRERAR B due to exercise of share options - 453
FRERR B AR T AR Interim dividend of HK$0.02

BHE0.02(ZEENF - (2009: HK$0.02) per ordinary share

7B10.027T) 12,583 12,577
BEAIREERE B Proposed final dividend of HK$0.10

B0 10T (ZEZNE - (2009: HK$0.05) per ordinary share

7510.057T) 62,919 31,442

75,502 44 472

KA [T 2 KRR B RS AR A AR
RN 2 R A A T ]
1 -

AARRSERAEARGERER

BRERZNTIRIBFENA R S
B AR AN S B F) A 153,500,000
(=T T h F: % ¥85,786,000
TTI)RFANBDBEITERR 2 MNEF
¥ £0629,018,6088%( = T T 7 F -
628,595,677/% ) st E P15 ©

BREERFIIRIBFARR RS
B AFEE AN B 17 #5153,500,000
T(ZZEZT N F : 85,786,000 )
T3 A% 2 hnE 15 £1629,194,787 4%
—TTHF : 628,815,1510%) (BNEH
HEREARBFANMAFEFANEHETLE
& 2 0 15 £1629,018,6080% ( = F
T : 628,595,6770% ) RRRFA K
BT 2 BRED 2B TTREMET
2 & mAk hn e F 19 80176,1798% (=
TTHE 1 219,4740%) )it EFTS ©
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14.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the Group’s
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year of
HK$153,500,000 (2009: HK$85,786,000) and on the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 629,018,608 (2009: 628,595,677) in
issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the Group’s
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year of
HK$153,500,000 (2009: HK$85,786,000) and on the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 629,194,787 (2009: 628,815,151),
being the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 629,018,608
(2009: 628,595,677) in issue during the year as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 176,179 (2009: 219,474) assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all share options
outstanding during the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2010

KAEREL
REF R BE
Hegr Hes - A
Freehold REMHRE
land and Plant,
buildings, ERIRE machinery,
A5H Group and leasehold Construction furniture and @t
(E¥TFr) (HK$'000) buildings in progress  other equipment Total
RZZETNEFNA—A At 1 April 2009
BN Cost 591,535 114,798 827,521 1,533,854
2HE Accumulated depreciation (177,076) - (585,036) (762,112)
REFE Net carrying amount 414,459 114,798 242,485 771,742
RZZEZTNFWMA—H - At 1 April 2009, net of
EMREAIE accumulated depreciation 414,459 114,798 242,485 771,742
NE Additions 125 56,810 11,138 68,073
HE Disposals (23,088) - (408) (23,496)
Gl Write-offs - - (41) (41)
LB Transfers - (12,176) 12,176 -
NEE Depreciation provided
mERE during the year (15,136) - (36,352) (51,488)
(R Exchange realignment 6,927 528 1,498 8,953
WZZE—ZF=A=+—H"  At31 March 2010, net of
EHREFINE accumulated depreciation 383,287 159,960 230,496 773,743
RZZE—ZF=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2010
(DN Cost 530,948 159,960 847,537 1,538,445
2HE Accumulated depreciation (147,661) - (617,041) (764,702)
BRTHFE Net carrying amount 383,287 159,960 230,496 773,743
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15. 9% - BERRE &) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

—EEAF=A=1+—H

31 March 2009

KAERLH
REF R BE
HEgr B B
Freehold REAMZSE
land and Plant,
buildings, REIR machinery,
KEE Group and leasehold Construction furniture and @t
(B%FT) (HK$'000) buildings in progress  other equipment Total
RZEENFMNA—H At 1 April 2008
PR AR Cost 594,886 38,275 783,641 1,416,802
2HTE Accumulated depreciation (161,562) - (546,048) (707,610)
BREFE Net carrying amount 433,324 38,275 237,593 709,192
RZZZN\FHA—H " At 1 April 2008, net of
B EFHITE accumulated depreciation 433,324 38,275 237,593 709,192
NE Additions 643 85,785 35,662 122,090
HE Disposals - - (324) (324)
B Write-offs - - (26) (26)
R Transfers - (10,175) 10,175 -
KEE Depreciation provided
mERE during the year (15,531) - (44,847) (60,378)
ERIEEE Exchange realignment (3,977) 913 4,252 1,188
RZZEZAF=A=F+—H"  At31 March 2009, net of
Bk R E accumulated depreciation 414,459 114,798 242,485 771,742
RZZEZENF=A=1+—H At 31 March 2009
B AR Cost 591,535 114,798 827,521 1,533,854
25T E Accumulated depreciation (177,076) - (585,036) (762,112)
BREDFE Net carrying amount 414,459 114,798 242,485 771,742
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—T-T4=-A=+—8 31 March 2010
15. 9% - BERRZRHE(E) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
RNEBZEETIRRMUNEBLAIMEE - The Group’s construction in progress was situated outside Hong Kong
AR ERR A5 - and was held under medium term leases.
BIER LR EE TR A KA ERE T The Group’s freehold land and buildings and leasehold buildings
FiEF  REEEFZHTHT : included above are analyzed as follows:
rEEHE Group
CEMTFT) (HK$°000) 2010 2009
s R LIET - Leasehold buildings held under:
BB ZFHEY Medium term leases in Hong Kong 12,563 38,641
FEEBLIMEE Z P EIRY)  Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 279,955 289,894
292,518 328,535
TEBEBAIMEE 2 Freehold land and buildings
KAZEREL M R IET held outside Hong Kong 90,769 85,924
383,287 414,459
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15. 4% - BERRE(E) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
ERREMRE
AKAFE Company Furniture and
(E®Fr) (HK$'000) other equipment
—E-EF=A=+—H 31 March 2010

RZZETNFNA—A - At 1 April 2009,

BHBRERFTE net of accumulated depreciation 738
KEZIFERE Depreciation provided during the year (98)
R-ZE—ZF=F=+—8 " At 31 March 2010,

BHBREFTE net of accumulated depreciation 640
RZE-TF=A=+—H At 31 March 2010

BN Cost 6,972

ZEE Accumulated depreciation (6,332)
AR FAE Net carrying amount 640
—EEAEFE=ZA=+—H 31 March 2009
RZEZENFNA—A - At 1 April 2008,

BHBRERFTE net of accumulated depreciation 836
= Addition 14
k= Disposal (13)
REFERE Depreciation provided during the year (99)
R-ZZZNF=A=+—8H" At 31 March 2009,

Bk EFHITE net of accumulated depreciation 738
RZFEZNF=A=1+—H At 31 March 2009

DEN Cost 6,972

ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation (6,234)
IR FAE Net carrying amount 738
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—E-TF=A=+—H 31 March 2010
16. B L bHE K 16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
REE Group
(BETFT) (HK$'000) 2010 2009
A A—BMEREE Carrying amount at 1 April 57,631 58,758
k= Disposals (8,254) -
REEHER Recognized during the year (1,832) (1,892)
bE 5 Exchange realignment 99 765
A= A=+—H/NERAEE Carrying amount at 31 March 47,644 57,631
MENEL D BRI Current portion included in
A& BERIER deposits, prepayments and
H U R 5k other receivables (1,640) (1,896)
JEMENE S Non-current portion 46,004 55,735
RNEFE LMEEEN T HEET Y The Group's prepaid land lease payments included above are analyzed
AT as follows:
rEH Group
CE¥FT) (HK$°000) 2010 2009
s A MTEN L EER Prepaid land lease payments held under:
EEB 2P EIRY Medium term leases in Hong Kong 15,149 24,002
TEES AN Medium term leases outside
7 R HAEZ Y Hong Kong 32,495 33,629
47,644 57,631
17. 58 17. GOODWILL
rEHE Group
CEEFT) (HK$°000) 2010 2009
EES Goodwill 94,931 94,931
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17. &8 (%) 17. GOODWILL (continued)

AERE

HEEEHEECHEBEOETETH
BRAREITRERD - ZMEARZ AT
WE B HIRBEREBEE HEEE -
SEAMNRSRETEAARFHERIE
HRER - WEABAETENEZMER
PEEHERERTRE - FHREH
Ml ERBRTERARBEFENER
0 RERNEH - ReMETEAFTA
HIMBEETFE A% (ZEZNF 1 6%)
(Fian) - ARB IR B AR 2 e
% o X BT Z EEENINBETE
1SHVERMER -

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated
to certain subsidiaries for impairment testing. The recoverable amount
of the subsidiaries is determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering a
five-year period. The key assumptions for the value in use calculation
include the expected growth rate and discount rate. The financial
budgets are prepared reflecting actual and prior year performance and
development expectations. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 9% (2009: 6%) which is before tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the relevant subsidiaries. The values assigned to key
assumptions are consistent with external information sources.

18. M B 1t Bl s 18.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AAHE Company

(BEEFT) (HK$'000) 2010 2009

LT - RERAE Unlisted shares, at cost 172,370 172,370

FEUHT B A BIBR KRR Due from subsidiaries, net 1,286,149 1,033,946

JERTB B A RIBR R Due to subsidiaries (785,600) (509,513)
672,919 696,803

P ) 2 AR R EREE A AR K A ]
FEEFIER - AT B QR ZRAER
BRI TS M RYEA S, o [
J& 2 B2 BRERERER T 2R B B R )
E2ERENER - AATESNRE
HIRI2ZEARNERINZEERRE -

MR-ZE-TFE=-F=+—0" #Ek
ATHBRRRIGHIRRERELE
#65,000,0007C( — BB E A G B
54,200,0007C) °
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The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed terms
of repayment. The balances with certain subsidiaries bear interest
at prevailing market rates. As the balances with subsidiaries arose
from advances to/from the subsidiaries for the purpose of operational
financing, the Company does not intend to demand settlement of the
amounts involved within 12 months from the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 March 2010, there was an impairment of HK$65,000,000
(2009: HK$54,200,000) made on amounts due from certain
subsidiaries.
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18. AKI B A Rl fEx () 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

FEA - PSS THE A RRRER
BB S #510,800,0007L( —EZ AL ¢
BB B B &8 120,900,0007T ) - H#a
BRI (B A 78 212,527 00070( — 2 &
FLEF ¢ B ¥150,009,0007T) B E B
HEEZEZSWB AR ZEEFE -

FEWRBRF ZFBERIMEILTAER
7l o

During the year, impairment losses of HK$10,800,000 (2009: write-
back of impairment losses of HK$20,900,000) were recognized for
amounts due from certain subsidiaries, with a total gross carrying
amount of HK$212,527,000 (2009: HK$150,009,000). The
impairment provision had taken into account the net assets values of
the subsidiaries.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 144 to
147.

19. RE& ARl fEES 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
REE Group
CE#¥FT) (HK$'000) 2010 2009
EREEFE Share of net assets 18,702 14,780

REEERE 2 RFHRERESEH - &
TR BER—MR=+RKAZT - 5t
Iy R-E—ZTF=—A=1+—H Bl
—E N RIEBRFUB 45,000 (=&
THE  BEE45,0007T) NEMEE S
NEIRFE9 647,000 (ZEF N
& B#17,435,00000) B9 RIERANE
WEFREBEFRENE S REER
KA DRI B SRR 23 K268,
Bl o

P B 7R SR 18 2 Bt 2 R )9 A A o B A
R BIRRERLE 2 BEEA -

The balances with the associates are trade related, unsecured, interest-
free and normally settled at a term of 30 days. Accordingly, as at 31
March 2010, the amount due from an associate of HK$45,000 (2009:
HK$45,000) and the amounts due to associates of HK$9,647,000
(2009: HK$17,435,000) are included in the trade and bills receivables
and the trade and bills payables, as disclosed in notes 23 and 26 to the
financial statements, respectively.

All of the Group’s associates are corporate entities registered in the
PRC and operating in Mainland China.
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19. RE& N Rz (E) 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Bt N E 2 A AR T Particulars of the associates are as follows:
AEBEEN
BRTRAEE ERBEDL
BIER Percentage of
Nominal value of ownership interest FEEK
= issued share,” attributable Principal
Name paid-up capital to the Group activities
#8111 Th = M SR A Z£41,520,0007T 25 BLERIHE
BRAT] US$1,520,000 HEEHEM
Foshan Fu Xiong Foundry Manufacture and sale
Company, Limited of iron casting products
1L TR = AL % $£800,0007T 25 AR
SHERR QA US$800,000 Dormant
Foshan Shunde Fu Xiong Machinery
Company, Limited
Hiat - Notes:
(1) ERARERBEBL RGBSR (1) The above companies are not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or
ke ERTEERAESEMmKE RN other member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.
AIEZ -
2) FMAFTA=A=1t—HAEREHH (2) The above companies use 31 March as their reporting date to conform with
UREFAHIZERATIZHRERE - their holding company'’s reporting date.
TERIY I ANEFE SN T 2T EERS The following table illustrates the summarized financial information of
EMERAEETRHREK the Group’s associates extracted from their management accounts:
(BB Fr) (HK$°000) 2010 2009
BE Assets 132,338 101,045
afE Liabilities (55,937) (41,923)
Wz Revenues 117,854 92,778
gl Profit 26,138 5,544
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20. it HEERKRE 20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY INVESTMENTS

REE Group
GEMTT) (HK$'000) 2010 2009
IEmENE D Non-current portion:
IELEMIRE - WA Unlisted investments, at cost - 170,539
TR Impairment - (46,482)
- 124,057
mEEs Current portion:
EEMRE - BKAE Unlisted investment, at cost 124,057 -
@t Total 124,057 124,057

S LTS RS R A AIRAR 4
EARREERENFEAE A%
ET o

RZZE—ZF=A=+—8 ZHRHH
REEZ IE s iRE RS -
HEREE /B 124,057,000 ( =&
TN - B ¥E124,057,0007T ) © R
FHRE AEEREBRERERE
#124,057,0007C © E#R TIREKAR
BE2TT o iR - AKERI Y —HER
MREZR S AHRHE MR T
38 At - I LT ERRENRE
HARHIFRDEEENBERPEE -

FA - —BERRIRE ZEEMRER
iEiH - ATRHIA R E S RRaEE -

The unlisted available-for-sale equity investments represent an
investment in a Taiwanese company and an indirect interest in a joint
venture company in Mainland China.

As at 31 March 2010, an unlisted equity investment in Mainland China
with a carrying amount of HK$124,057,000 (2009: HK$124,057,000)
was stated at cost. After the end of the reporting period, the Group
received a return of investment of HK$124,057,000 leaving the
investment cost at HK$2. After that, the Group entered into a
transaction to dispose of the entire investment as disclosed in note 38
to the financial statements. Accordingly, the unlisted equity investment
at the end of the reporting period was reclassified from non-current
assets to current assets.

During the year, there was write-off of the gross amount and impairment
of an investment in a Taiwanese company as it is expected not to be
recovered.
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—E-ZEF=A=+—H 31 March 2010
21. BZERHKRE 21. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS
REE Group
CEETT) (HK$°000) 2010 2009
FERHRE - Held-to-maturity investments:
FLEMFBEIE 2 Unlisted held-to-maturity
[BEL3 SR NE commercial papers, at cost - 7,800
B Impairment - (7,800)
FN - BRI EERBIRE AT During the year, an investment in held-to-maturity commercial papers
REEMEE - matured with no value.
22. 78 22.INVENTORIES
REE Group
CEEFT) (HK$'000) 2010 2009
5= Raw materials 235,460 277,929
P Work in progress 219,258 209,633
SURY G Finished goods 217,355 216,747

672,073 704,309
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23. EREZ REBERX 23.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

REE Group

CE¥FT) (HK$'000) 2010 2009

FEIE 5 N EIRAR R Trade and bills receivables 799,348 578,537

B Impairment (75,916) (62,455)
723,432 516,082

EPZBBGRR—RARERS - R1T
ERLEAKRE - AEEREESIES
ZREERENREBRHEER Y96
EM/NTR BETARIRSME
Rz BP  RIEREEER - A%
B BRER B AR R SR A ME B AR SR S B KR
R BREERBREERE - NREEW
B SRR A IR 15
ERZPam -

AR DB MR ENEKE S R
SEEFRBREDHMEF AR - BUR
BEANETEERR - BAESHRE
R ARARIL NP FS. o

EWE S REBRRFREREZ S
T

Trading terms with customers are either cash on delivery, bank bills or
on credit. Customers are granted credit at the discretion of the Group,
subject to their respective business strength and creditability. The
average credit period is 90 days and extension of credit period is made
for customers with good trading and repayment records. The Group
adopts strict control policies over credit terms and receivables that
serve to minimize credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and
bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there
is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade and bills receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

The movements in impairment allowance for trade and bills receivables
are as follows:

rEH Group

CEMTFT) (HK$'000) 2010 2009
M A—H At 1 April 62,455 76,074
R RINBRE Impairment losses charged/

BERE GTA (write-back of impairment credited)

RURERED) JF58 to the income statement, net 14,374 (14,725)
ERiRN-AEk e Amounts written off as uncollectible (1,224) -
bE Exchange realignment 311 1,106
W=A=+—H At 31 March 75,916 62,455
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23.BREZREBRRE) 23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

f L EWE 5 REERFORERETR
BREEERERIRERENRERE SIRX
7 #64,390,0007C( ZEENF « B
56,980,0007T) + R B HERI < BREE
BABH69,772,000( ZEENF + B
#61,401,0007T) B VE{RE BB E & E
ZEINE 5 REBRFOS R B A ®
2R K FERR R AR EE o FEUR AR R 2
BE o

W SR B RERN R E 5 M RIERR
BXNBIEIR A E 2RO -

Included in the above impairment allowance for trade and bills
receivables is an allowance for individually impaired trade receivables
of HK$64,390,000 (2009: HK$56,980,000) with a gross carrying
amount before provision of HK$69,772,000 (2009: HK$61,401,000).
The individually impaired trade and bills receivables relate to customers
that were in default or delinquency in interest or principal payments
and only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables, based on the
payment due date, that are not considered to be impaired is as

follows:

rEE Group
(E¥FT) (HK$°000) 2010 2009
REE] (W@ AR RE) Current (neither past due nor impaired) 526,796 335,172
wHELR AR Less than 90 days past due 132,893 67,482
mHNL+—ZE—AN\TX 91 to 180 days past due 20,662 48 536
AR —B/\TX Over 180 days past due 43,081 64,892

723,432 516,082

W ARIE EA SRR 2 FEUGR IR S B s H
BN AT TP

Ba MBI BRI E 2 UGRAS A
THEASEARFRSHLENBLE

HREEERYEEAEY - A%
DB SR 2HE - BEHANE
REEREHIRERE -
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Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to customers
for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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23.BRESZREBRRE) 23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

JEUE 5 N R BR N E 6 FE FIE Y — B Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables is an amount due

BNAEZRIBBEAS 000 —EZ 1
F  E¥EA45,0007T) © AT FRIEFE AR
EEEMEBRSBELR -

M-ZTANE=ZF=1+—H RKZEH
REBREFEPRES TRPBEAREL
EZHBRARMEE 2 BINERBE
14,321,0007C E/EHEIR - FA1EERPE
RNEMGHERZERBARRL A
TN -

from an associate of HK$45,000 (2009: HK$45,000) which is repayable
on similar credit terms to those offered to the major customers of the
Group.

As at 31 March 2009, included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables
were pledged bills receivables of certain subsidiaries operating in
Mainland China of HK$14,321,000 for securing certain bills payables
issued by financial institutions in Mainland China on behalf of the
subsidiaries.

24.35]¢ ~ EFER EMEIWERRR 24. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
rEH AT
Group Company
GEMTFT) (HK$'000) 2010 2009 2010 2009
HEASENE Deposits and prepayments 46,778 35,633 417 417
AR T IEE K - Prepaid land lease payments,
mEnE current portion 1,640 1,896 - -
E b U BR TR Other receivables 33,071 28,768 308 308
81,489 66,297 725 725

ZEEEMEBMRRE - BHTHE
RYE B NI B HR A SRAC 8% 2 FR UL

None of these assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets
included in these balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default.
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—E—ZF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2010
25. RERBITHETF 25.CASH AND BANK BALANCES
rEH ¥ NN
Group Company
CE#EFT) (HK$'000) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Re RIRTTER Cash and bank balances 535,467 407,369 5,825 4,574
AT s R Bank deposits with
[RESm B original maturity of
TR=MEA less than three months
2 TEHRTFRK when acquired 179,885 10,957 50,000 -
RE Rk Cash and
REEEY cash equivalents 715,352 418,326 55,825 4,574
FTF s BE Bank deposits with
[RESm B original maturity of
Bid=1E A more than three
2 TEBITER months when acquired 54,510 - - -
HIRSRITIE IR (A7721)  Pledged bank deposits (Note 1) 94,329 27,264 - -
IR MIRITHET Total cash and bank balances 864,191 445,590 55,825 4,574
Kiatl: ZEFREAETRRRARELSS Y Note 1: The balance included pledged bank deposits of certain
It B A Rl ATH5 A 7B 32,524,0007T subsidiaries operating in Mainland China of HK$32,524,000 (2009:
(ZZEZTNF - HWE27,264,0007T) HK$27,264,000) and HK$61,805,000 (2009: Nil) for securing certain
K& #61,805,000T( ZZEZT LA ¢ loans granted by certain financial institutions in Mainland China to
) 7R ITER - D RIFEERE certain third parties and for securing certain bills payable issued by
R AREE TIHEEERTET financial institutions in Mainland China, respectively.
FoEMNERRBERERPERX
PR ISR B 2 B TR RIRER
e
Hiato: SBRITFERUABRTEEFEIZHF Note 2: Cash atbanks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit

KRS - RFAEERESNE
$o MEMZH—RENEATER
FEREAR I UATE B 0B R BREL
ZAlRSY
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rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day
and six months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the

Group, and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates.
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26. ENE S REBRX

27

RBEMRZBNE S REBRRFIES
NEHAFAEZRERONIT

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

TEE Group

CEEFT) (HK$'000) 2010 2009

R EHP Current 537,756 77,000

—Z= Ltk 1 to 90 days 72,701 48354

Nt+—RKE—BN+X 91 to 180 days 3,002 121,595

BE—a Atk Over 180 days 17,080 29,623
630,539 276,572

FERE 5 REBRRZLTHFLE o R
B REBREFERBEEMNEE QA
FRIBAEEEQ 647,000 L( ZEENF B
#17,435,0007T) © AT RIER /=T
RS - ZER R E R R TE
FERPHRE R -

Hitt AR BT RE

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. Included in the
trade and bills payables are trade payables of HK$9,647,000 (2009:
HK$17,435,000) due to associates which are repayable within 30 days,
which represent similar credit terms to those offered by the associates

to their major customers.

27.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

REH KA E
Group Company
(E®For) (HK$'000) 2010 2009 2010 2009
BUWEGET& Deposits received 83,055 53,414 46 -
BETEEN Accruals and
Hh&fE other liabilities 199,075 140,708 14,707 4,776
282,130 194,122 14,753 4776

RARMENERRETRENEREA
B ANPIFLE o

The financial liabilities included in other payables
non-interest-bearing.

and accruals are
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—E-TF=A=+—H 31 March 2010
28. RITEN - FEIKH 28.BANK LOANS, UNSECURED
BRAI=
Effective
REE Group interest rate B HA
CE¥EFT) (HK$°000) (%) Maturity 2010 2009
RITEREEE Bank loans repayable
—FR within one year 1.2 (2009: 1.7) 2010 41,964 37,864
AEBEZERBRITERUFEF X The Group’s unsecured bank loans are at floating rates.
§+/§u\ °©
29. IEREFIIE 29. DEFERRED TAX
FRREFRBAENEEZEWNT The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year
are as follows:
ELERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities
HERSEER
HERE
Depreciation
allowance in s
rEE Group excess of related %  BiIEEE Withholding wst
(GEBTT) (HK$'000) depreciation  Provisions  Tax losses tax Total
RZZZENFMA—H At 1 April 2008 2,414 (2,897) (844) 17,474 16,147
AEERIEE R Deferred tax charged/(credited)
(FTA) Z BRI to the income statement
FE (ML) during the year, net (note 11) 7 2,167 (44) (4,869) (2,739)
P& H R Exchange realignment - 447 - (1,686) (1,239)
RZZTTNE At 31 March 2009 and
“A=+—8kK 1 April 2009
—EENFNA—H 2,421 (283) (888) 10,919 12,169
AEERIE R Deferred tax charged/(credited)
(FTA) Z BRI to the income statement
TR during the year, net (note 11) (2,421) 590 888 (2,273) (3,216)
BINHEB R Withholding tax on
SR 2 M repatriation of earnings
from overseas subsidiaries - - - (3,176) (3,176)
P& H R Exchange realignment - (178) - 944 766
RZZ—FTF Gross deferred tax
=A=+—H liabilities recognized in the
ZEEMJ’Q e BARE consolidated statement of
BRI AEEE financial position at 31 March 2010 - 129 - 6,414 6,543
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—E-TF=A=+—H 31 March 2010
29. EELBIE(E) 29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
EEREEE Deferred tax assets
WER&ERR
HENE
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of
rEE Group related BHE HEEBR et
(BEFr) (HK$°000) depreciation Provisions Tax losses Total
“ZEN\FHA—H At 1 April 2008 (124) 65,293 4371 69,540
AEBRBERTA Deferred tax credited/(charged)
(BR) 2 BRI S48 to the income statement
BRERERHENE during the year, net, including
A7 IR a tax charge of HK$625,000
75#625,0007T due to the effect of a change in
(Hat11) the effective tax rate (note 11) 88  (12,776) 15913 3,225
fE i S Exchange realignment - 1,457 99 1,556
RZZTENEF At 31 March 2009 and
ZA=+—-8k 1 April 2009
—TENFHA—H (36) 53,974 20,383 74,321
AEBRBERTAS Deferred tax credited/(charged)
(0B 2 BIER T F 5 to the income statement
PHERERRENEEZE  during the year, net, including
Z A ERRR a tax charge of HK$379,000
75#379,0007T due to the effect of a change in
(K1) the effective tax rate (note 11) 36 11,772 (11,083) 725
i Exchange realignment - 176 67 243
RZE—TF Gross deferred tax assets
“A=+—H recognized in the
ZERNTA T BAMRE consolidated statement of
ERETIEEERE financial position at 31 March 2010 - 65,922 9,367 75,289
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29, EERIE (&) 29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

BRAEBIMEEBBRRENRESRBE
262,416,00070( —Z T L F: B
232,260,0007T ) KR 78 R B K BE A
#70,182,0007( —ZE T N F: B
106,627,0007T ) © A] ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%
B2 AT R&ZERBUEF] o —_=
—ZF=HA :‘f’_EHREHéZF&E\E%%R/ﬁﬁ
FIFEFTA] B INIR A R B A BE R R &)
AR TE 5 1878 544,039,000 ( — 2 F
FLEE ¢ B#81,532,0007T) 5h RN E
DATEISEIE— RN - WEEL
JE R F AT T T &1 - SRR
ZEBERRELETIEEE - TARER
RIETRIAE R - BIEE 26,143,000
TL(ZEZNF « B¥25,096,0007T)H
MIBESEENRBESEEERTFASR
HY o HAbESBAIAEREIRTE ©

BB SEFETUE - R BARRER
RINERERIINEREESTIRIRERE
HMIO% BT - B — T \F—F—H
RERIERARN _EE+F+ A=+
—HERIAEF o WHREINERE
EPTERDERERETBBRBIRLD - BIFT8E
HRBEMINAMEE - KEBRFA
HE R ER5% 3 10% °

R-ZE—TE=ZA=+—0H  AEER
Fp B K A 37 BB BB A B AR B AR BE i
MM EMANARERENEERHE - &
EERZEENEREER2EE 1L
7 #270,110,000( ZEZ N F B
#120,429,0007T) - EER A - % F
ME A BN A R BE R Al RAR RS BEER =
ZENF—A—HERIRZEF -
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The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$262,416,000
(2009: HK$232,260,000) and in Mainland China of HK$70,182,000
(2009: HK$106,627,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Except
for tax losses arising in Mainland China of HK$44,039,000 (2009:
HK$81,532,000) as at 31 March 2010 to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilized, deferred tax assets have not been recognized
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in those companies
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilized. Included in unrecognized tax losses are losses
of HK$26,143,000 (2009: HK$25,096,000) that will expire within five
years from the date losses arose. Other losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.

Pursuant to the New CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement was
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rates during the year were 5% or 10%.

At 31 March 2010, no significant deferred tax has been recognized for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China, of which the
aggregate amount of temporary differences have not been recognized
totalled approximately HK$270,110,000 (2009: HK$120,429,000). In
the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute their earnings accrued after 1 January 2008 in the
foreseeable future.
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29, EERIIE (&) 29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

A—T—TE=A=+—H  FEHRRA
MBMELEZRE BRI NNE AT
EAERA R E M R E MR AIET
TRIBBEEA £ 4E%46,122,00070( =
TENE ¢ E810,621,0000T) °

BN - EEAFRA= T LR
BB BEATERE - AEHBAT
2 B 18 BB % i25% T 8 520% + &
—ETEMA AR - RER
TTHA A+ ARG E— ST
ABFTSBUE - FHEBBIEE— e
20% NHAZE17% - BRIBERBAER

At 31 March 2010, the aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with the investments in subsidiaries established in Taiwan
for which deferred tax liabilities arising from withholding tax have
not been recognized totalled approximately HK$46,122,000 (2009:
HK$10,621,000).

According to an amendment to the Income Tax Law of Taiwan enacted
on 27 May 2009, the income tax rate for the Taiwanese subsidiaries
decreased from 25% to 20% effective from 1 April 2010. A further
amendment to the Income Tax Law of Taiwan enacted on 15 June
2010, the income tax rate further decreased from 20% to 17% effective
from the same date.

AR B A E AR E R RS 2 % 8 A P There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
(EEwa-2- dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
30. ®#& 30. SHARE CAPITAL
CE#FT) (HK$'000) 2010 2009
JETE Authorized:
1,000,000,0000% & 37 A% 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares
% E¥0.107T of HK$0.10 each 100,000 100,000
BEITEREEET Issued and fully paid:
629,187,6000% (ZZZ L4 : 629,187,600 (2009:
628,833,600/% ) &A% 628,833,600) ordinary shares
HEER0.107T of HK$0.10 each 62,919 62,883

FIA - BEM7354,0000% BB A 2 3R B8
AT RREK1.988TT 2 TR ERE
TTE(ESL) - Bkt - AEREBLOE
#%704,0007T (REF AT ) #2877
i HE B 78 #0.107T 2 354,000/% & &
A% o

During the year, the subscription rights attaching to 354,000 share
options were exercised at the exercise price of HK$1.988 per ordinary
share (note 31), resulting in the issue of 354,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration, before issue expenses, of
approximately HK$704,000 in aggregate.
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30. BRA& (&) 30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

ARRBR{TEBBIRAZD W

Notes to Financial Statements

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued ordinary share

T capital are as follows:
2817 2817 [;:8vi}
ZBEREE [ RER
Number of Issued Share
ordinary shares share premium st
in issue capital account Total
BT T BT JBMF T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZEENFNA—H At 1 April 2008 626,227,600 62,623 501,454 564,077
JETTIE 2 BERR Share options exercised 2,606,000 260 4,920 5,180
RZEZTNF At 31 March 2009 and
—A=+—HkK 1 April 2009
—ETNF
mA—H 628,833,600 62,883 506,374 569,257
TR 2 BE A e Share options exercised 354,000 36 668 704
RZE—ZF
=A=1+—H At 31 March 2010 629,187,600 62,919 507,042 569,961
31. B 31. SHARE OPTIONS

KBEARRANRZZEZ_FNAZ+=
BRI RREAFAE @A LR
REBER ARAIDHMN—BREE
([2002F 51 &) - RIK20024F 51 &I
2 BRI s TR A AWEUIR B3k
RIRRARE LIRE 2R -
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Pursuantto an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 23 August 2002, the Company adopted a
share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”). Share options under the
2002 Scheme do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

31.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

The particulars of the 2002 Scheme are as follows:
(a) Purpose

As rewards or incentives for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the eligible participants.

(b) Participants
(i) (a) any director (whether executive or non-executive,

including any independent non-executive director) and
employee (whether full time or part time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded to work for,

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder
(as defined under the 2002 Scheme) or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder;

(ii) any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group

or any controlling shareholder or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder; and

(iii) (@) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor or distributor of,
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31.IBRHE(E)

(b) BRAE)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(b) fEfa] A 1 8k fE B2 52 4
7 ?")E‘Jzﬁﬁt&miﬂi

SAEIRE A - BEEER K
Hitp EEBEEE 2R
jﬁ% ,

() BRI 2 [ HE
[T

d) ERFIRBAEMES -

F2002F A EIME - 28 AR
sk Z N5 E L‘ALEHE‘%FJU 2
e s A S CIMA
WFHTEEREE LR

RAF R A H - 5% 149,140,760
R B (HRENARRQAIEET
JEAT7.81% ) 7] T84T ©

BUSREATERES LR

FRARIR20024F 51 &l Z R X S 1T HE
SN - BUS2BRAEEN+ @A
N(EEREBREZALL) - R
1220024 5t &) R AN A BE (T E A
BREEMER ZBRE(RE
B - CITERRRITE ZER
) TATTRE - FRBTT R K#EITZ
Bty ER T SBBI%HNARFE
BATROR

AREERERBEER R
RR L ERE Y AR T FASAR

NRAEFRNEERTIEENRE
HAR o
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31.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Participants (continued)

(b) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services in respect of
business operations to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to, or

(d) any customer of goods or services of,

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or
a company controlled by a controlling shareholder.

For the purposes of the 2002 Scheme, the participants shall
include any company controlled by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of participants.

Maximum number of ordinary shares available for issue

A total of 49,140,760 ordinary shares are available for issue
which represent approximately 7.81% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of ordinary shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of share options granted under the 2002
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company to
any participant (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding
share options), in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the ordinary shares in issue unless
otherwise approved in accordance with the terms of the 2002
Scheme.

Period within which the ordinary shares must be taken up
under a share option

Within ten years from the date of grant of the share option or
such shorter period as the board of directors of the Company
determines at the time of grant.
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®
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(h)

()

BREETERLESEREHR
(fmA)

REHBERER - XABEZERK
REBRERATEMLERE
REHRNAE) -

BEAEREENSERROAR

EREBREZO 2 AE(BEZ
B+ RERABEREZEABZE
# e REZBNBREZNE
1% #¥1.007T °

BRETEEEEC2EXE

TR A TN 2 B
TREFHARRESTRRE - H
TREBAELIRTIIRSE

() BXPANREBRELZEA
WE R 2 BB (B
(EEREAR/RXHHE):

(i) BRPAMEER L B BRI F{E
BRI ZEBNZEARE
Rl 2 BB YT E
&

(iii) EBIZEE

2002 FHBIBR T 2 B

R AR 1820024 5t Sl IR R S 1745
S 2002 ETEI 2 BREFEM BT

FWER—_TE——FENA=+=
B & e

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

31.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

U]

(g

(h)

(i)

Minimum period, if any, for which a share option must be
held before it can be exercised

At the time of granting a share option, the board of directors of
the Company will determine the minimum period(s), if any, for
which a share option must be held before it can be exercised.

Amount payable upon acceptance of a share option and the
period within which the payment must be made

An offer for the grant of a share option must be accepted within
forty-five days inclusive of the day on which the offer was made.
The amount payable on acceptance of the offer for an option is
HK$1.00.

Basis of determining the exercise price of the share options

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a share
option shall be determined by the board of directors of the
Company and shall be no less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer of grant, which must be a business day;

(ii) the average closing price of the ordinary shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of an ordinary share.
Remaining life of the 2002 Scheme
The 2002 Scheme has a life of ten years and will expire on 23

August 2012 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with
the terms of the 2002 Scheme.

129

3 ANNUAL REPORT 2010




B 5 3R R M =F Notes to Financial Statements

—E=-EF=f=+—§ 31 March 2010

31.IEBREE) 31.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
T3 BRFRIRIE2002F 51 8% 118 The following share options were outstanding under the 2002 Scheme
W ARTTIE 2 BEARE - during the year:
SEAZR TSR BRTHEE"
Name or category of BEREHAE BB S fTEMR  Exercise price
participants Number of share options Date of grant* Exercise period per share**

RZZETNE  FRRE  ERENF  FRLAH R-E-BF
mA—H Granted Exercised  Forfeited =A=1+-H

At 1 April during during during At 31 March
2009 the year the year the year 2010
(B/R/%) (B/R/%) BT
(DIMAY) (DIMAY) HK$
£
Directors
B+
Chi Kin CHIANG 334,000 - - - 334,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.988
ENR 332,000 - - - 332,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2004 - 10/3/2013 1.988
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG 334,000 - - - 334,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.988
666,000 - - - 666,000
HE
Sam Hon Wah NG 334,000 - (334,000) - - 11/3/2003  11/3/2009 - 10/3/2013 1.988
/3T Subtotal 1,334,000 - (334,000) - 1,000,000
EE(RESH)
Employees (other than directors)
At 10,000 - - - 10,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2004 - 10/3/2013 1.988
In aggregate 24,000 - - - 24,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2006 - 10/3/2013 1,988
230,000 - (20,000) - 210,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.988
100,000 - - - 100,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2009 - 10/3/2013 1,988
/5 Subtotal 364,000 - (20,000) - 344,000
2t Total 1,698,000 - (354,000) - 1,344,000
* BREzrEEHEYERLBSESTES *  The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the
RFEABAHILE commencement of the exercise period.
o MERABMHAR © IRAALAR S E b FE AR AN **  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case
Bl o BEPRRE TP BRI T EE o of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

31.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Notes:

(1) The closing price of the ordinary shares on 11 March 2003 was HK$1.98
per share.

(2) The weighted average closing prices of the shares in which the share
options were exercised during the year by the participants of the 2002
Scheme were as follows:

IREFE YW HE

Weighted average closing prices
BETEAAI—X RiTER
Immediately before On the date
SHERAZHEERER Name or category of participants the date of exercise of exercise
JEH B
HK$ HK$
RizE Sam Hon Wah NG 2.66 2.63
EE(BREZIN Employees (other than directors) 2.87 2.93

RIF20025 51 B S MR B ERE 2R
BREM1.007T °

w0 Bf R ¥R & Mt FE30PF R 0 F A
354,000 i s 4 J 17 (5 - BUE 34T
354,000/ & J% H {878 #60.107T A A A
R AR AR EE A BT S H AT A
AN 49 78 #536,0007T M B ) 7 B 4078 ¥
668,0007T °

M-Z—TE=A=+—8  ARFE
120024 51 &1 51,344,000 ( —EZ
FLEF ¢ 1,698,0000% ) BE A HE if R ATHE o
WM ARTTEE 2 AR 2 B T(E - R
RNAREFZERLEE  BFEITEIN
1,344,000 & IR E (B B #0.10T 2 &
AR ARG AEAERANR (D BT
AT 38 A% AN 4974 5 134,0007T K B 1734
{B4)75%2,537,0007C °

(3) The share options granted under the 2002 Scheme are for a consideration
of HK$1.00 per grant.

(4) The 354,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the
issue of 354,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company and
new share capital of approximately HK$36,000 and share premium of
approximately HK$668,000 (before issue expenses), as detailed in note
30 to the financial statements.

(5) As at 31 March 2010, the Company had 1,344,000 (2009: 1,698,000)
share options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme. The exercise in full of
the share options outstanding would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 1,344,000 additional ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company, and additional share capital
of approximately HK$134,000 and share premium of approximately
HK$2,537,000 (before issue expenses).
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32. % 32.RESERVES

A%

AEEAEE LB O RS
(LN GA MR EBREST 25 -

RESERRE  REEHENARA
B MR ERAR R D B R A BIZAK— 88
DIIE R MBS — AR E 2 B
B - EERENHEEIZARER
B0%EF - ISAEFBEAER - %
BRI AR MK R - T
Z-ZF=A=1+—RH ZELRHESR
B #38,777,000t(ZFFNEF - B
38,535,0007T) ©

RETELHIDBELERPINGEL
BREE - RABRFPEKREZE
THIE A BAEEE A REENEEE
EEERARRFIERHE) B2
RiFERERREEEEMEARS0% °
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Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

In accordance with the Company Law of Taiwan, Asian Plastic
Machinery Company, Limited and Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan
Company, Limited are required to transfer a portion of their profits after
tax to a capital reserve, which is non-distributable. When the capital
reserve has accumulated to 50% of their capital, up to 50% of the
capital reserve may be capitalized. The capital reserve may be utilized
at any time to offset any deficit. As at 31 March 2010, such capital
reserve amounted to HK$38,777,000 (2009: HK$38,535,000).

In accordance with the Law of the PRC on Sole Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises, certain of
the Company’s Mainland China subsidiaries are required to transfer a
portion of their profit after tax to the statutory reserve fund, which are
restricted as to use, until the accumulated total reaches 50% of their
registered capital.
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32. @ (&) 32. RESERVES (continued)
R  EREE
R ER &
Share Capital EXfHEE RKREER
AKATF Company premium redemption Capital Retained st
(E®FIr) (HK$'000) account reserve reserve profits Total
R-_ZTTN\FHA—H At 1 April 2008 501,454 295 2,875 236,503 741,127
AFEFE2HERE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 11,099 11,099
BITHAR (M15430) Issue of new shares (note 30) 4,920 - - - 4,920
LARS#E S 5 Y Equity-settled share option
Rl BE arrangements - - 29 - 29
(E_TENF Final dividend for the
—A=+—H1 year ended
FEZRARE 31 March 2008 - - - (109,417) (109,417)
AR (A/3E13) Interim dividend (note 13) - - - (12,577)  (12,577)
RZZEZNEF At 31 March 2009
ZA=+—8K and 1 April 2009
—ZEThEF
mA—H 506,374 295 2,904 125,608 635,181
REFEEEREE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 60,613 60,613
BATHAR (H15230) Issue of new shares (note 30) 668 - - - 668
HE_ZTTNF Final dividend for the
=RA=+—H1 year ended
FE 2 REARE 31 March 2009
(H1##13) (note 13) - - - (31,442)  (31,442)
RERRR B (aE13) Interim dividend (note 13) - - - (12,583) (12,583)
R-T—FTF
=A=1+—H At 31 March 2010 507,042 295 2,904 142,196 652,437
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RREE 33.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
REEHR - BRIV SRR EBE 2 As at the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided
RBEDT : for in the financial statements were as follows:
rEH RDF]
Group Company
(BEFr) (HK$'000) 2010 2009 2010 2009
METFETE=E/EE  Guarantees given to financial
e 45 B SR A institutions in connection with
IR - mREE facilities granted to certain
third parties, at the maximum 87,089 91,329 - -
A %MTE BEETM  Guarantees given to banks in
R IRITEOER connection with facilities
granted to subsidiaries - - 766,846 757,799
87,089 91,329 766,846 757,799

MZZ—ZTHE=ZF=+—08  A2F5%

BYHERREEMRMHARITHER
BEF B B EE4 A7 ¥ 120,964,0007T
—ZTTANE : B#39,012,0007T)

i
—E-EE-A=1—R XEEH

JiN
R ERESEZE TEEZEY B
BRERBEZERAZESRORE

#12,755,0000t( —EFE N F: B
35,914,0007T) ©
RIZE—ZTEF=ZA=+—H  ~EER

RRFBRAEEEZME  BERHZ
% BERNERBEZEARRESRY
AA#19,332,000L( ZETNEF B
#26,780,0007T) °

R=F-BEZA=t—8 KON
EANFR(ZFENE : ) -
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34.

As at 31 March 2010, the guarantees given by the Company to banks
in connection with facilities granted to subsidiaries were utilized to the
extent of approximately HK$120,964,000 (2009: HK$39,012,000).

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had capital commitments, which
were contracted but not provided for, in respect of the construction
of industrial buildings in Mainland China amounting to approximately
HK$12,755,000 (2009: HK$35,914,000).

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had capital commitments, which
were contracted but not provided for, in respect of the purchase
of property, plant and equipment in Mainland China amounting to
approximately HK$19,332,000 (2009: HK$26,780,000).

As at 31 March 2010, the Company had no significant commitments
(2009: Nil).
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35.BEALRS 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
TR BRAMEHREEMWTAMEER In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
BRON - ANEBERUTHEZEALR the Group also had the following related party transactions during the
2 year:
(a) A% [H LB #E57,440,0007T0( =& (a) The Group purchased raw materials amounting to HK$57,440,000

T - B %54,924,0007T ) A —
Bia AR OB IE AT iR i 2 A8
WERRIGRBERME -

o AEEA—FREQR] BB
REMW ORI ARAE([EBRR
Y1) - LAfE 1B 7% #16,729,0007T
(ZZZTNF « #%12,033,0000T)
BERME - FR - KR ZIAAR
EEHERERS °

BREELIRBEEREE(ZARK
RAZEF)MRESAZHE

A AHRENEBREEXERDAMK
RAE E80% 2 X5 - ANER
BEXARARZEHRAERRRI
PARE RIS E RAEE 2 B8
BRTA] o A ERFRIANEE EZ
BB AR REZ B RIERE
1T

(2009: HK$54,924,000) from an associate at prices and on terms
similar to those offered by unrelated suppliers of the Group.

In addition, the Group purchased raw materials of HK$16,729,000
(2009: HK$12,033,000) from a related company, Zhenjian Mould
& Machinery (Shenzhen) Company Limited (“CC-SZ”). These
transactions were also continuing connected transactions of the
Group during the year.

Dr. Chen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, two directors of
the Company, and their associates together control the exercise
of 80% of the voting power at general meetings of Chen Chien
Holdings Limited, which holds the entire equity interest of CC-SZ.
CC-SZ is therefore a related company of the Group. The terms
of the above transactions were conducted with prices and terms
mutually agreed by the Group and the related company.
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5. BEALRZ(E) 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) AEETRETEABFHM -

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

TEE Group

GEBTFIT) (HK$'000) 2010 2009

pSEEL == EEv Short term employee benefits 17,024 11,258

ZEEREF Post-employment benefits 48 48

VARG HE ST AT ROBERSHE B Al Equity-settled share option expenses - 21
17,072 11,327

ARESWSNFAERDRYE
WKRMIEIHT -

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to
the financial statements.

36. 2MTASHE 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

RI|ESF - FTRARNSRTAY @

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

BT : as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
ERmEE Financial assets
2010 2009
HHE e
SREE EBRK SREE BEXR
Available-for-  FEIFE Available-for-  JEUZIA
PN Group sale financial  Loans and #:t  salefinancial  Loansand @t
(BETrT) (HK$'000) assets  receivables Total assets  receivables Total
AEEEREZIRE  Available-for-sale equity investments 124,057 - 124,057 124,057 — 124,057
BWESLZERES  Trade and bills receivables - 723432 723,432 - 516082 516,082
AET4®  FBRFIE  Financial assets included
REAEKIRR in deposits, prepayments
NemEE and other receivables - 34,197 34,197 - 30,050 30,050
Be BT8R Cash and bank balances - 864,191 864,191 - 445590 445,590
124,057 1,621,820 1,745,877 124,057 991,722 1,115,779
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36. eMITASEE) 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

ki 3=Ri Financial liabilities
DB AR AT EZ
tEans
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
rEHE Group
CEMTFor) (HK$'000) 2010 2009
BB S REEERER Trade and bills payables 630,539 276,572
FEAEL AR FE (SRR FX Financial liabilities included
LERTaE in other payables and
MNemasE accruals 46,039 47,105
IRITE - EIEHE Bank loans, unsecured 41,964 37,864
718,542 361,541
EHMEE Financial assets
BRREWRE
Loans and receivables
ARNF] Company
GEMTFT) (HK$°000) 2010 2009
FEUSHI B A BIBR IR Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,286,149 1,033,946
A AR & MEAM Financial assets included
FEURER SR in deposits and
HERIEE other receivables 725 725
Be MIRTTHEE Cash and bank balances 55,825 4,574
1,342,699 1,039,245
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37.
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SRMITAESEE) 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)
SRBE Financial liabilities
DB RATEZ
=R
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
AAHE Company
GEBTFT) (HK$’000) 2010 2009
RSB EB A A BR X Amounts due to subsidiaries 785,600 509,513
SREMREEEERBEE 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

AEETESHTABRERE RRITHE
7 - BWE S MEEERR - Ht KR
R BNESMEBRER - HiEME
FIARSRITER ©

HASESRTAMELNTERR R
MEER - SNERR - EERBR LR
ARk - AREYREERHNER,
b - BRAZE @R T AR E R KR IKZ
FRBAOBEREN T - BEEELEN
B S - DAREOR KB A1 A Rt e
TTEERRER

IEIE

AREBMESOTISNZEHER TR
HEAEENFERITESER - NEHE
ETRERENZER  EBERF X
RREF - & BEREUE AR KA B

oo o
N
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The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and bank
balances, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
payables, other payables and bank loans.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group had insignificant interest rate risk. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely
and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans carrying floating interest
rates. The Group monitors its interest rate exposure closely and
considers to take measures to reduce significant interest rate exposure,
if any.
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37.¢EEREEBERBEE) 37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

SIS LB

REEMINERBRIENEERS - BF
RHEEREE  UERFERERE
/‘%%ﬁﬁl‘]/?ixé °

REEBINERZ HRAR - ZFRRIFER
REBWARDHEMEKBERS - 2
ETRARER/R5EE -

EREEREEURTRARERR
BEENR S RIRAERT lﬂﬁuéﬁé
SNERER  IERE - EEREITEX
SNE R -

TEFITAE BB B F RS
SHIR (TR R BB BURK T 2 01
ATIHETRARBER A ETH
rrrrrrr BB B (P A B R
ATEED) -

(continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk arises from commercial transactions,
recognized assets and liabilities and net investments in operations in
Mainland China and Taiwan.

The Group has transactional currency risk exposures. Such risk
exposures arise from a substantial portion of the Group’s sales and
purchases transactions denominated in United States dollars (“US$”)
and Renminbi (“RMB").

Management closely monitors foreign exchange exposure in
transactions denominated in US$ and RMB and its investments in
Mainland China and Taiwan and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in US$ and RMB
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and liabilities) and the Group’s equity.

SMERE= BRBLATE R

#h0, GRL) #hn, GRd) e
Increase/ Increase/ &N (E2)
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in foreign in profit (decrease)
CE#FT) (HK$'000) currency rate (%) before tax in equity*
2010
i A REE B TTHAE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 45575 -
M AREEBTRE If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (45,575) -
M AREHETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% 10,013 -
M AREHETRE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) (10,013) -
2009
i ARBEETHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 46,396 -
i A REEB TR (E If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (46,396) -
M AREHETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% 10,045 -
M AREHETRE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) (10,045) -
* IBERBRT *  Excluding retained profits
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37.cmEREEEERBEE) 37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

FERR

EERRZEFENRRZHH T TREE
REETHEEMSAEERMNRZTH
BARHYRIRENE -

FEWE Z AR AR E IR B
BEEETF REIE - 5 REERE
HIR  AEESERSRMENESER
HY R EI SRR - LAREGR 5L AT UR B 50IR
EEL R MRERE - Bt - AEE
RERBRILTERX

rEEAMEREE(BERe RS
ZEMNEERBIEREFTRELD
1R B KEBEENRZE AN
HE - AEE VAT FIREMEERT
EENEERR - BRSNS
WML ©

HRASER SRR MEEENEP
Ry > WEFEREHRER - KHEE
RBRER,/ ZSTHETER - AEH
YA FEEREFEERR -

BAANEERWE SRFFEANEER
EBEE—SEIEER  BERYTER
RMIEE23 ©

REBE SR

AEBRAERRDESFTETR - B
ERHESHRNAR - 2 TAZEE
TRTEM : BNESREERRF K
TREEM : BUESREBRFON
FMBERBRARERSRE -
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(continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty of a
transaction is unwilling or unable to fulfill its obligation and the Group
thereby suffers a financial loss.

The credit limits of trade receivables are determined and monitored
by management on an ongoing basis. In addition, at the end of each
reporting period, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for unrecoverable amounts. Therefore, the Group’s exposure to
impairment is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, arises from default of the counterparty
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Group is also exposed to credit risk through the
granting of financial guarantees, further details of which are disclosed
in note 33 to the financial statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy parties,
there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk
are managed by customer/counterparty. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 23 to the
financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments (e.g. trade and bills payables) and financial
assets (e.g. trade and bills receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.
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37.¢REREEEERBE(E) 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)
RBESER(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
AEENCRBENRSHR(EZED The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of
FIHARBIE NN RE)NEEE B the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,
LU was as follows:
2010
=@A=E
+=@EA
More than 3 +=@A
={@HAA months and Bt
KEH Group Less than 3 less than 12  More than wat
CEEFT) (HK$'000) months months 12 months Total
BNESREEIEF  Trade and bills payables 527,736 99,582 3,221 630,539
FREAEMENERS K Financial liabilities included in
JEstBERNERIBE  other payables and accruals 46,039 - - 46,039
SRITER  EIEH Bank loans, unsecured 41,964 - - 41,964
615,739 99,582 3,221 718,542
2009
=@AzE
+=@A
More than 3
=@EAR months and
REE Group Less than 3 less than 12 st
(BE#Fr) (HK$'000) months months Total
BB S REEER Trade and bills payables 271,459 5,113 276,572
O A B At B ST BR R I Financial liabilities included in
ErraENerasE other payables and accruals 47,105 - 47,105
SRITER - EIRH Bank loans, unsecured 37,864 - 37,864
356,428 5,113 361,541
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37.cmEREEEERBEE) 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

RBESERE(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
=@EAR
Less than 3 months
¥IN/NE| Company
CE¥FT) (HK$'000) 2010 2009
FEASTHT B 2 BIBR IR Amounts due to subsidiaries 785,600 509,513

ERERE

FEMEATRNEIEREARESE
BB AL MR A AL
R AR HES RRAR ISR
HA o

AER EARBE BN B B 1T B I I
BEEBEARRE - BRFAFHBEAR
B AEEHGHBRTREOBE
FICRREEARHKBITHR - BE—F
—EF=R=1+—HEZTTNF=H
=+ —BHLEFEAR  ZFELAEEZH
R A AL AR -

BESN - REETERFRBDEEMNRN
(@R EERERBRE XS
o REBZBRBMERHDFRDEE

+
/%El 7R ©
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Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and make adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2009.

In addition, the Group monitors capital using the position of net current
assets, which is total current assets minus total current liabilities. The
Group’s policy is to maintain a positive balance of the net current
assets.
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38. MEMBREH

39.

40.

RZZE—ZFF WM A+ 75H" Chen
Hsong Marketing International Limited
(RRF—FHEE2ENBLR)HER
RE(RRBl 2 BEEERRARFIL—
(W& ) BE R B Kk
ZEITRERE(THESRELD 1
BRI BHmEMF0 RER/EE
94,740,0007C - HN_ZE—FFHA+
NEBRAETRE @M S 2 N -
RE ETEHIA & FIH AT ERAG — IR MUK
7 4978 #594,000,0007T + 1 JY AR ¥R (X
{8 7% #94,740,0007T * $HEK (D 2 B
EEBE2T(HENRREKRA B
124,057,0007C 0B FE 5T 32 17 2 Al 2 4%
BHE) UWRAMLESEEZ A
AERFAZmAE o

b &8

ETHBRERDEWERIE  ARLE
REFZ2HITA -

IR R

M BHRREN —E—FEFLATHA
REZREL -

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2010

38.EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

39.

40.

On 16 April 2010, Chen Hsong Marketing International Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement (the “Agreement”) with CH Investments, the immediate
holding company of the Company, to dispose of the unlisted equity
investment in Mainland China (the “Disposal”), as disclosed in note
20 to the financial statements, for a consideration of HK$94,740,000,
as disclosed in the announcement regarding the discloseable and
connected transaction dated 16 April 2010. The Group expects
to record a one-off gain of approximately HK$94,000,000 from
the Disposal as calculated by reference to the consideration of
HK$94,740,000, the carrying amount of the sale shares of HK$2
(representing the original cost of investment of HK$124,057,000 net
of the return of investment before the entering into of the Agreement)
and other costs and expenses in connection with the Disposal.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by
the board of directors on 15 July 2010.
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Principal Subsidiaries
As at 31 March 2010

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

HEMRL,
Place of
incorporation/

53 <)
BRAmEE
BWER

Nominal value of

FRRFE
RET DL
Percentage of

a8 registration issued share/  equity attributable FTEXEK
Name and operations paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
BiEsa
Held indirectly
DBEIRNBIR AR a LBk 100 SHE B
Asian Plastic Machinery Taiwan Ordinary Sale of
Company, Limited #14%50,000,0007T plastic injection
NT$50,000,000 moulding machines
EHEKEY R REE R, %42,100,0007% 100 SERBERTIEA
RINBRRE @ EelEiyN 3 US$2,100,000 Manufacture and sale
Chen Hsong CAD CAM PRC/ of precision moulds
(Shenzhen) Company, Mainland China
Limited
BN BERREERAR] o 3l 100 REF B REE RS
Chen Hsong Finance and Hong Kong Ordinary Provision of financial
Management Services Limited e and management
HK$2 services
BHTZERCRD HE %£4£4,000,0007T 100 BEME
BRATD iy N US$4,000,000 Property holding
Chen Hsong Industrial Park PRC/
(Shenzhen) Company, Mainland China

Limited @
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Principal Subsidiaries
As at 31 March 2010

HMRL, 28T
KEHE BAREE, KAREE
Place of BRER REBSL
incorporation/ Nominal value of Percentage of
28 registration issued share/  equity attributable TEEK
Name and operations paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
BERE (8)
Held indirectly (continued)
BEDRHERRAR Bk LmikEgT 100 R HERSS
Chen Hsong Logistics Services Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Provision of
Company Limited BEZREEER R - logistics services
75#5,000,0007T
Non-voting deferred ©
HK$5,000,000
BIERBHAR AR B TBRAE2TT 100 SHE T
Chen Hsong Machinery Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Sale of
Company, Limited BREERTERG @ - plastic injection
75%50,000,0007T moulding machines
Non-voting deferred ©
HK$50,000,000
BEEHERECRIN) R Y&#24,000,0007C 100 L& M E M
BRAEW ey HK$24,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Chen Hsong Machinery PRC/ of tie bars
Equipment (Shenzhen) Mainland China
Company, Limited ("
BERE(ZR)ARAR O R %£8,010,0007T 100 s R HE T B
Chen Hsong Machinery iy N US$8,010,000 Manufacture and sale
(Ningbo) Company, PRC/ of plastic injection
Limited © Mainland China moulding machines
BEEMORIDERDRF © hE,/ %417,130,0007T 100 BUE RS
Chen Hsong Machinery EelEipN S US$17,130,000 Manufacture and sale
(Shenzhen) Company, PRC/ of plastic injection
Limited © Mainland China moulding machines
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Principal Subsidiaries
As at 31 March 2010

iy B#1T
KEHE RAEE EAREE
Place of BWRER BREBSL
incorporation/ Nominal value of Percentage of
28 registration issued share/  equity attributable TEEK
Name and operations paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
BERE (8)
Held indirectly (continued)
BEEHERO AR AR =) TR 100 LS R HET B
Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan Ordinary Manufacture and sale
Taiwan Company, Limited #1A#165,000,0007T of plastic injection
NT$165,000,000 moulding machines
BERTEARRAR e Lk 100 HERTEAR
Chen Hsong Precision Mould Hong Kong Ordinary Sale of
Company Limited B4 410,0007T precision moulds
HK$4,410,000
BHELHORIDERRR ® hE,/ 7%10,000,0007T 100 HETBH
Chen Hsong Sales & Marketing SelEiyN S HK$10,000,000 Sale of
(Shenzhen) Company, PRC/ plastic injection
Limited @ Mainland China moulding machines
BERAR LT Bk TR 100 SHE T B
Chen Hsong Technology Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Sale of
ST plastic injection
HK$2 moulding machines
B EERMRE R e,/ %4604,1007T 100 BUE RS T
EEBHENARAR @ B A RE US$604,100 Manufacture and sale
Chen Ning Plastics Machinery PRC/ of plastic injection
Company, Limited @ Mainland China moulding machines
RIS R B e R i,/ %45,200,0007% 100 B R
HRARAR ® iy N US$5,200,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De PRC/ of plastic injection
Plastics Machinery Mainland China moulding machines

Company Limited @
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Principal Subsidiaries
As at 31 March 2010

HMRL, 28T
REE RAEE AAREE
Place of BWRER REBSL
incorporation/ Nominal value of Percentage of
28 registration issued share/  equity attributable TEEK
Name and operations paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
BERE (8)
Held indirectly (continued)
MR EEE % =R R, 2%42,100,0007T 100 U R HE T B
BHARAR B ARE US$2,100,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De No. 3 PRC/ of plastic injection
Plastics Machinery Mainland China moulding machines
Company, Limited "
Il J\I&iﬁ E BRI =g %47,900,0007T 100 BUE RIHE T2
BRAR SN US$7,900,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De PRC/ of plastic injection
Precision Machinery Mainland China moulding machines
Company, Limited "
Il J\l&iﬁ@%ﬂ BRE =g %4:3,000,0007T 100 BUERHERESE
BRAR SN US$3,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Intra-Italy Hydraulics PRC/ of hydraulic motors
(Foshan Shunde) Mainland China
Company, Limited
RYEEREE R R, %12,000,0007T 100 SUERHEET
ERAR @ SN US$12,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Shenzhen Chen Hsong Precision PRC/ of casting parts
Equipment Limited @ Mainland China
Hrat - Notes:

(1) These companies are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

(1) WERARINGBERE -

(2) WERRATINEGELEDRE- (2) These companies are sino-foreign equity joint ventures.
3) EITEREELEMRD B 2R GIHEF U EE 8. - (3) The non-voting deferred shares carry limited rights to dividends, no rights to
ﬁ*&&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘ihmﬁﬁ PR &IFER NS vote at general meetings and limited rights to receive any surplus in a return of

BRI EBANR 2 BS o

capital in a winding-up.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority interests

of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published

BERIDEBRRER - audited financial statements, is set out below.
E RESULTS
BE=HA=+—HILFZ Year ended 31 March
(BEFr) (HK$'000) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Wz Revenue 1,806,334 1,603,107 2,316,136 2,155,014 1,955,334
g Profit from operating activities 204,415 107,134 342263 337,352 306,418
BEMA Finance costs (1,856) (4,668) (4,419) (2,387) (7,139)
iAol Share of profits less losses
A FE e of associates 6,137 1,386 1,130 2,159 (185)
B A AR A Profit before tax 208,696 103,852 338,974 337,124 299,094
Sz Income tax expense (54,778) (16,700) (18,129) (24,833) (26,826)
REE R Profit for the year 153,918 87,152 320,845 312,291 272,268
BEBR Attributable to:
RNAREZFHBEA  Equity holders of the Company 153,500 85,786 317,829 312,276 272,450
DR Minority interests 418 1,366 3,016 15 (182)
153,918 87,152 320,845 312,291 272,268
BE - BBERIVBERRES ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS
R=A=+—H As at 31 March
(CEEFr) (HK$'000) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
BERE Total assets 3,493,038 2,885,343 3,118,939 2,661,539 2,477,621
BERE Total liabilities (1,014,828) (533,189) (726,035) (576,194) (630,881)
DHR R R Minority interests (14,144) (13,683) (12,041) (7,967) (7,483)
2,464,066 2,338,471 2,380,863 2,077,378 1,839,257
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Chen Hsong Holdings Limited

EEMAAW A TFRARE13E 155
13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

EERE / Tel: (852) 2665 3222

8K / Fax: (852) 2664 8202

#81lk / Website: www.chenhsong.com.hk
EEH[ / E-mail: comm@chenhsong.com.hk
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